United City of Yorkville
651 Prairie Pointe Drive
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yorkville.il.us

PLANNING AND ZONING

COMMISSION AGENDA
Wednesday, July 10, 2024
7:00 PM
Yorkville City Hall Council Chambers
651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Meeting Called to Order: 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call:

Previous meeting minutes: June 12, 2024

Citizen’s Comments

Public Hearings

1.

PZC 2024-12 102 Worsley St., Steve Holland, petitioner/contract purchaser, and KCJ Restoration
LLC, owners, has filed an application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,
requesting rezoning classification. The real property is generally located south of east Main Street,
immediately east of Worsley Street, and north of the Fox River in Yorkville, Illinois. The petitioner is
requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residential District to R-2 Single
Family Traditional Residence District, consisting of approximately 0.28 acres, commonly known as
102 Worsley Street. Additionally, the petitioner is requesting to decrease the minimum lot size for the
R-2 Single-Family Traditional Residence District to less than the required 12,000 square feet.

Unfinished Business

New Business

1.

PZC 2024-12 102 Worsley St., Steve Holland, petitioner/contract purchaser, and KCJ Restoration
LLC, owners, has filed an application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,
requesting rezoning classification. The real property is generally located south of east Main Street,
immediately east of Worsley Street, and north of the Fox River in Yorkville, Illinois. The petitioner is
requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residential District to R-2 Single
Family Traditional Residence District, consisting of approximately 0.28 acres, commonly known as
102 Worsley Street. Additionally, the petitioner is requesting to decrease the minimum lot size for the
R-2 Single-Family Traditional Residence District to less than the required 12,000 square feet.

Action Item
Rezone & Variance

PZC 2024-14 Grande Reserve Units 10 & 11, The petitioner, D.R. Horton, Inc. - Midwest, is
seeking Final Plat approval for an approximately 22-acre site consisting of 158 new residential



townhome lots located east of Kennedy Road and south of the BNSF railroad in Units 10 and 11 of
Grande Reserve subdivision.

Action Item
Final Plat

Additional Business

1. City Council Action Updates

a.

Adjournment

PZC 2024-07 Kelaka, LLC, Green Door Capital, petitioner/contract purchaser, and Kelaka,
LLC, owners, has filed an application with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County,
Illinois, requesting rezoning classification. The real property is generally located south of the
Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad line, southeast of Faxon Road. The petitioner is
requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residential District to M-2
General Manufacturing District (contingent on approval of annexation by the City Council)
consisting of approximately 148.56 acres.

Action Item
Rezone

PZC 2024-08 Hagemann Trust, Green Door Capital, petitioner/contract purchaser, and
Hagemann Family Trust, owners, has filed an application with the United City of Yorkville,
Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning classification. The real property is generally
located immediately east of Eldamain, north of Corneils Road, and west of West Beecher
Road. The petitioner is requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-Family Suburban
Residential District to M-2 General Manufacturing District (contingent on approval of
annexation by the City Council) for three (3) parcels, consisting of approximately 138.441
acres.

Action Item
Rezone

PZC 2024-15 C1 Yorkville, LLC, petitioner, and Yorkville Nexus LLC, owners, have filed
applications with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting special
use authorization for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) and preliminary PUD Plan
approval for a data center campus. The real property is generally located immediately east of
Eldamain Road, north of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad and Faxon Road, and
west of Beecher Road consisting of approximately 230 acres.

Action Item
PUD & Preliminary PUD Plan



DRAFT

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
City Council Chambers
651 Prairie Pointe Drive, Yorkville, IL
Wednesday, June 12, 2024 7:00pm

Meeting Called to Order
Commissioner Danny Williams called the meeting to order at 7:00pm, roll was called and a
quorum was established.

Roll Call
Greg Millen-yes, Rich Vinyard-yes (via Zoom), Danny Williams-yes, Ryan Forristall-yes, Rusty
Hyett-yes, Reagan Goins-yes

City Staff
Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director

Sara Mendez, Plannerl

Other Guests

Chris Vitosh, Vitosh Reporting Service Russ Whitaker, Rosanova & Whitaker

Lynn Dubajic Kellogg, City Consultant
Nicholas Dodd

Mark & Liz Thompson

Mary Maher Bartalone, Kendall Mktpl.
Dave & Nancy Peat, Kylyn's Ridge
Roger Blomgren, Baird & Warner

Sam ?, via Zoom

Larry Hagemann via Zoom

Matt Gilbert, Green Door Capital
Connie McMahan

Don Bartalone, Kendall Marketplace
Sam Woodworth, WSPY

Shawn Thomas, IBEW

Bradd Hout

Ryan Fitzgerald via Zoom
Ryan/FVBRA staff via Zoom

David Petesch, Kendall County Record, via Zoom
Brian?? Mike Reisenbach???
Lisa?? Bailey Karabotham??? BB Shore Lane

Previous Meeting Minutes May 8, 2024

Motion by Reagan Goins and second by Richard Vinyard to approve the minutes as presented.
Roll call: Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes. Carried
6-0.

Citizen’s Comments None

Public Hearings
Commissioner Williams explained the procedure for the 3 Hearings and swore in those who

would give testimony. He also explained the order for presenting testimony. A motion was made
by Ms. Goins to open the Public Hearings, seconded by Mr. Hyett. Public Hearings opened at
7:04pm. Roll call: Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes.

Carried 6-0. Mr. Williams read each Public Hearing description.

1. PZC 2024-07 Kelaka, LLC, Green Door Capital, petitioner/contract purchaser and
Kelaka, LLC, owners, have filed an application with the United City of Yorkville,
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Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning classification. The real property is
generally located south of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad line, southeast of
Faxon Road. The petitioner is requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-Family
Suburban Residential District to M-2 General Manufacturing District (contingent on
approval of annexation by the City Council) consisting of approximately 148.56 acres.

2. PZC 2024-08 Hagemann Trust, Green Door Capital, petitioner/contract purchaser, and
Hagemann Family Trust, owners, has filed an application with the United City of
Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning classification. The real property
is generally located immediately east of Eldamain, north of Corneils Road and west of
West Beecher Road. The petitioner is requesting rezoning approval from R-1 Single-
Family Suburban Residential District to M-2 General Manufacturing District (contingent
on approval of annexation by the City Council) for three (3) parcels, consisting of
approximately 138.44 acres.

3. PZC 2024-15 C1 Yorkville, LLC, petitioner, and Yorkville Nexus LLC, owners, have
filed applications with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting
special use authorization for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) and preliminary PUD
Plan approval for a data center campus. The real property is generally located
immediately east of Eldamain Road, north of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad
and Faxon Road and west of Beecher Road consisting of approximately 230 acres.

(See Court Reporter's transcript)

At approximately 8:19pm a motion was made by Ms. Goins and seconded by Mr. Millen to close
the Public Hearing. Roll call: Williams-yes, Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes,
Vinyard-yes. Carried 6-0.

Unfinished Business None

New Business

1. 2024-07 Kelaka LLC (see above for full description)

Background: Ms. Noble explained what data centers are used for and said these locations are
suitable since a large ComEd sub-station is close for the large amount of power data centers use.
She said the property owner has the right to petition for annexation without notifying adjacent
property owners. When the code is not being observed exactly, the public has the right to provide
comment. She said state law dictates how nearby property owners are notified of rezoning, etc.
The law says owners within 250 feet must be notified and the city actually does 500 feet. Since
all property coming into the city defaults to R-1 zoning, this is the reason for the rezoning
request. Staff supports this request to rezone to M-2.

NOTE: The petitioner provided responses to the rezoning request and would like them to be
included in the official record.

Discussion: Commissioner Williams was concerned that there was no PUD on the Kelaka and
Hagemann requests and that the petitioners could rezone them to M-2 and possibly sell them to
someone who has no intention of using them for data centers. However, he said data centers
would greatly add to the tax base. There are 2 specific homeowners who will be affected and he
believes their property values will be lowered as a result. He asked if the petitioner had reached
out to the owners about purchasing their land. Mr. Gilbert said the petitioner had not and he
believes the property value would actually increase. He added the petitioner has no plans for the
sites at this time.
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Action Item

Rezone
Commissioner Williams entertained a motion to approve PZC 2024-07 Kelaka. So moved and
seconded by Mr. Vinyard and Mr. Forristall, respectively. The rezoning standards were reviewed
at this time and the motion as follows was read by Ms. Goins.
Motion: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on June 12, 2024 and
discussion of the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to
the City Council a request for rezoning from R-1 Single-Family Residential to M-2 General
Manufacturing District for a proposed future industrial/data center, contingent upon approval of
annexation by the City Council, for a property generally located south of the Burlington Santa Fe
railroad line, just southeast of Faxon Road.
Roll call: Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes. Carried
6-0.

2. PZC 2024-08 Hagemann Trust (see full description above)

Background Ms. Noble said this property consists of 3 parcels north on Eldamain Rd.,
unincorporated and zoned A-1 in Kendall County, with a request to rezone to M-2. The city
entered into an IGA in 2011 with Plano and Kendall County in regards to reconstruction of
Eldamain from Menards north to Galena. Kendall County assumed jurisdiction and made
improvements at $6.3 million. The 3 entities decided to split that cost and Yorkville's share was
$3.8 million. Any property that would annex to that area with frontage, would have to pay their
share. At that time the cost was deemed to be $336 per linear foot and will be determined at a
later time. Grants may also be received. In 2019 the city revised the Comp Plan and all land use
from the currently annexed portion (Bright Farms area) north to Baseline Rd. is zoned for
manufacturing/general industrial. She said staff is supportive of the annexation and rezoning
request. Mr. Williams noted this property has the 2 homeowners that would be part of the
annexation.

Action Item

Rezone
A motion was made by Mr. Vinyard to approve PZC 2024-08 Hagemann Trust and seconded by
Mr. Forristall. The zoning standards were reviewed and Mr. Williams noted that the 2 property
owners, their children and livelihood will be impacted. Roll call: Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes,
Goins-yes, Millen-no, Vinyard-yes, Williams-no. Carried 4-yes, 2-no.

3. PZC 2024-15 C1 Yorkville, LLC (see full description above)

Background: Ms. Noble said the request is for a PUD and preliminary plan. The PUD is a group
of variances granted to development based on the developer providing a higher level of benefit to
the city. She said there are 12 standards that can be requested for PUD status and only one
standard is needed. The standard being met by the petitioner is regional public utilities
improvements, water & sanitary. Other developers in the area will become beneficiaries of
connecting to those utilities. The preliminary plan has 13 deviations and she reviewed 10 of
those, some of which are setbacks, parking, vehicular cross access, loading space, landscaping.
Ms. Noble noted that the city has hired a sound engineer to do a sound evaluation.

NOTE: The petitioner has requested that the Special Use and PUD standards be entered into the
public record.
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Action Item

PUD & Preliminary PUD Plan
A motion was made and seconded by Ms. Goins and Mr. Millen, respectively, to approve PZC
2024-15 C1 Yorkville, LLC. Mr. Williams reviewed the standards for Special Use and PUD.
He noted that construction hours have been an issue and could be addressed with the city.
Motion: Ms. Goins read the Special Use motion as follows: In consideration of testimony
presented during a Public Hearing on June 12, 2024 and approval of findings of fact, the Planning
and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of a request for Special Use
authorization of a Planned Unit Development for a data center campus to be located at the
northeast corner of Faxon Road and Eldamain Road subject to the conditions enumerated in a
staff memorandum dated June 4, 2024 and further subject to class D perimeter landscaping
around 3 sides along Eldamain, Beecher and Faxon Roads.
Roll call: Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes. Carried
6-0.

It was moved and seconded by Ms. Goins and Mr. Hyett, respectively for approval of the PUD
for PZC 2024-15 C1 Yorkville, LLC. Motion: Ms. Goins read the motion as follows: The
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of the Cyrus One —
Yorkville, Illinois Preliminary PUD Plan prepared by Olsson and dated May 21, 2024 and further
subject to Class D landscaping along Eldamain, Faxon Road and Beecher Road. Roll call: Hyett-
yes, Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Forristall-yes. Carried 6-0.

Additional Business

1. Appointment of Vice Chair

A Commission Chairman has not been appointed by the Mayor as of yet. Mr. Williams
nominated Mr. Vinyard to continue as the Vice-Chair and Ms. Goins seconded.

Roll call: Goins-yes, Millen-yes, Vinyard-yes, Williams-yes, Forristall-yes, Hyett-yes. Carried
6-0.

2. City Council Action Updates
Ms. Mendez stated that all action items listed on the agenda had been approved.

Adjournment
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 8:57pm on a unanimous voice

vote.

Respectfully submitted by
Marlys Young, Minute Taker
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING

651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, Illinois

Wednesday, June 12, 2024

7:00 p.m.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

PRESENT: (In person and via Zoom)
Mr. Danny Williams, Chairman,
Mr. Rich Vinyard,
Ms. Reagan Goins,
Mr. Greg Millen,
Mr. Rusty Hyett.

Mr. Ryan Forristall.

ALSO PRESENT:
Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community
Development Director;
Ms. Sara Mendez, Planner;

Ms. Marlys Young, Minute Taker.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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WITNESS:

PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

I NDE X

MATT GILBERT

SHAUN THOMAS

MARY MAHER-BARTALONE

ROGER BLOMGREN

LISA PRATHER

BRIAN (no last name supplied)
DON BARTALONE

NICHOLAS DODD

MIKE REISENBECK

BAILEY CARRABOTTA

RUSS WHITAKER
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

(WHEREUPON, the following
proceedings were had in public
hearing:)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: There are three
public hearings scheduled for tonight's Planning
and Zoning Commission meeting. The purpose of
these hearings is to invite testimony from
members of the public regarding the proposed
requests that are being considered before this
Commission tonight.

Testimony from persons present who
wish to speak may be for or against the requests
or to ask questions of the petitioners regarding
the request being heard.

Those persons wishing to testify are
asked to speak clearly, one at a time, and state
your name, who you represent, 1if anyone. You are
also asked to sign in at the podium over there.

If you plan to speak tonight during
tonight's public hearing as a petitioner or as a
member of the public, please stand, raise your
right hand and repeat after me.

(Witnesses sworn.)

CHATRMAN WILLTIAMS: All right. SO
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

tonight the order for receiving testimony during
the public hearing will be as follows: The
petitioner for the request will present to the
public, those wishing to speak in favor of the
request will speak after, and then those wishing
to speak in opposition to the request will speak
after that.

May I have a motion to open the
public hearings on petition number one, PZC
2024-07, Kelaka, LLC, requesting rezoning
classification; number two, PZC 2024-08, Hagemann
Trust, requesting rezoning classification; and
three, PZC 2024-15, Cl Yorkville, LLC, requesting
PUD and preliminary plan approval? May I have a
motion, please?

MS. GOINS: So moved.

MR. HYETT: Second.

CHATRMAN WILLTIAMS: Thank you wvery much.
Roll call vote on the motion.

MS. YOUNG: Vinyard.

(No response.)
MS. YOUNG: Vinyard.
MS. NOBLE: He said aye.

MS. YOUNG: Okay, thank you. Williams.
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Forristall.

MR. FORRISTALL: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Hyett.

MR. HYETT: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Goins.

MS. GOINS: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: And Millen.

MR. MILLEN: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. The
public hearings up for discussion tonight are as
follows: PZC 2024-07, Kelaka, LLC. This 1is
Green Door Capital, petitioner and contract
purchaser, and Kelaka, LLC, owners, has filed an
application with the United City of Yorkville,
Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning
classification.

The real property is generally
located south of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe
railroad line, southeast of Faxon Road. The
petitioner is requesting rezoning approval from
R-1 Single Family Suburban Residential District

to M-2 General Manufacturing District, contingent
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

on approval of annexation by the City Council.

This property consists of
approximately 148.56 acres, and, again, that was
PZC 2024-07.

Additionally there is PZC 2024-08,
Hagemann Trust, Green Door Capital, petitioner/
contract purchaser, and Hagemann Family Trust,
owners, has filed an application with the United
City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,
requesting rezoning classification.

The real property for that is
generally located immediately east of Eldamain,
north of Corneils Road and west of West Beecher
Road.

The petitioner is requesting
rezoning approval from R-1 Single Family Suburban
Residential District to M-2 General Manufacturing
District, contingent on approval of annexation by
the City Council for three parcels consisting of
approximately 138.44 acres. Again, that was PZC
2024-08.

Finally we have PZC 2024-15, C1
Yorkville, LLC, petitioner, and Yorkville Nexus,

LLC, owners, have filed applications with the
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

United City of Yorkville, Kendall County,
Illinois, requesting special use authorization
for a planned unit development and preliminary
PUD plan approval for a data center campus.

The real property is generally
located immediately east of Eldamain Road, north
of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad and
Faxon Road and west of Beecher Road consisting of
approximately 230 acres. Again, that one was PZC
2024-15.

Is the petitioner for PZC 2024-07,
Kelaka, LLC, ready to present?

MR. GILBERT: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MATT GILBERT,

having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. GILBERT: Hello. Turn this on.
Good evening. My name 1is Matt Gilbert. I am
with Green Door Capital based here out of
Chicago.

We have been working -- So actually
we currently own approximately 280 acres in the

immediate area of the subject sites, including
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

the third applicant for the PUD plan. We also
are petitioner for the first two annexation
rezoning properties.

We have been working with the city,
with Yorkville, to get the properties annexed and
rezoned into the City of Yorkville. We have
worked on an extensive plan to bring utilities to
the area.

We have been upfront with the city
all along on the plans to bring manufacturing
development, which may or may not include cold
storage facilities, data center facilities, and
we have been involved with the city I'd say for
the past two years.

This is kind of one of the final
steps for the Kelaka piece before we actually
close on the acguisition of the site, and we
don't have any plans for the Kelaka site as of
right now for any development other than we will
own it, hold it.

We are marketing the site for both
industrial and data center development nationwide
currently. I guess I'll stop there unless there

is any questions from Staff.
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

10

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Not at this time,
unless anyone on the board wishes to ask any
qgquestions at this time. Sorry to speak for you.

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. You may
be seated. So with that said, is there anyone
present who wishes to speak in favor of the
request? Please step forward, sir.

SHAUN THOMAS,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. THOMAS: Good evening. My name
Shaun Thomas. I am a representative of the
IBEW, Local 461, the International Brotherhood
of Electrical Workers. We cover this
jurisdiction.

With the progress that's currently
being made on Eldamain Road, that entire
corridor, with the lettuce farm, the Ready Mix
factory, I believe that these projects will
enhance that, bring taxpayer -- tax dollars to
the area, as well as not only good paying
construction jobs, but jobs for community members

as well. I think it's a win/win.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

11

When the construction of that
FEldamain corridor was done, everybody knows that
road was poured thick, it was -- excuse me, it
was built for what these individuals plan on
doing, and I think it would be a win for this
community and for the members of the community.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you, sir. Is

there anyone else who wishes to speak in favor of
the request?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: I will take that as

a no
MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: I will.
CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Oh, you will? Thank
you. Sorry.

MARY MAHER-BARTALONE,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: My name is Mary
Maher-Bartalone and I live very close to one of
the sites that's looking to be rezoned, the one
here (indicating). Also, I am the Bristol
Township assessor, so I do deal with a lot of

this stuff.
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024
12

So, anyway, I am generally largely
in favor of the development because of the huge
increase to the assessed valuation base that we
have for our township, so I don't know exactly
what it's going to wind up being, of course;
however, our current industrial assessed value 1is
very, very, very small compared to residential
properties, so a development like this I think
would be a boon really to our aggregate assessed
value, which ultimately plays a big part in the
tax rate that ultimately calculates your tax
bill.

My only concerns really are —-- and I
don't know if this is the most appropriate place,
and this is more as like a homeowner who lives
right there, is the rules or whatever is going to
be put in force for the actual construction of
the property because we live, you know, in a
residential area and attention to detail about
the rules for like when can they start, when can
they end, what are the rules regarding noise,
lighting, that was another question I had, things
of this nature, so I would just -- would really

hope that the City of Yorkville would be really
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

13

on top of that because, just as, for example, the
development right across the street from us, it's
7:00 o'clock at night, they are all still out

there working with all their big, heavy

machinery, so I'm just going to say that. And so
that's it. I am largely in favor for those
reasons.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you, ma'am.
All right. Is there anyone else who wishes to
speak in favor?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: Take that as a no.
All right. Is there anyone present who wishes to
speak in opposition to the request? Please come
on up, sir.

ROGER BLOMGREN,

having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. BLOMGREN: You didn't give me a
category of none of the above.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Understand.

MR. BLOMGREN: My name 1s Roger
Blomgren, I live in Yorkville, south side. I am

also a representative of Baird & Warner Real
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PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

14

Estate and I represent the property owners at
11254 Faxon Road, which is commonly known as the
Rob Roy farm, and when the ownership of the farm
showed me the document, they probably consist of
about 17 -- a little over 17 acres of land, and
my gquestion would be as to since they are not
going to develop it in the near future, what
impact, if any, does this development or this
annexation have on the property.

Second question would be we carry --
or this property carries a Plano address and it's
my understanding that anything east of Eldamain
is -- the boundary agreement states that anything
east of Eldamain is Yorkville, so I would assume
that -- I guess I can't assume. If there is an
annexation, who would propose the annexation for
this property?

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: That would be the
petitioner, and I believe the petitioner can
speak on the timeline.

MR. BLOMGREN: Would that be the
petitioner? If, for example, the developer
decided they want to move on this property, they

would advance the petition?
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MS. NOBLE: The petition has already
been submitted and a public hearing has already
been conducted for the annexation.

MR. BLOMGREN: I'm sorry, I can't hear
you.

MS. NOBLE: The petition for annexation
has already been submitted and a public hearing
was held on May 14th.

MR. BLOMGREN: Yeah, no, I understand,
but for this particular piece of property, has
there been a petition presented for annexation
into the City of Yorkville?

MS. NOBLE: Yes, 1t was presented and a
public hearing was held on May 14th for
annexation.

MR. BLOMGREN: And has there been -- and

there was a public hearing for that?

MS. NOBLE: Correct. May 14th.

MR. BLOMGREN: And were the owners
notified of that, you know?

MS. NOBLE: With annexations it's only a
notification in the public paper, so it would
have been in the paper, and then --

MR. BLOMGREN: And which paper might

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

16
that have been?
MS. NOBLE: That would have been -- it's
in the packet. That would have been the Beacon,

Beacon newspaper.

MR. BLOMGREN: The Beacon. The one
that's about this thick now, that goes to about
14 people in Yorkville?

MS. NOBLE: Beacon newspaper, it was
published. So there is no obligation for
notification of property owners, only for
requests for rezoning.

MR. BLOMGREN: Okay, I understand. In
terms of utilities that are coming in to service
the road, to service the annexation parcel, are
there any plans -- and we understand water is
coming down Beecher and then turning towards
Alice on Faxon, is that fair? Is that correct?

MS. NOBLE: Yes. The petitioner is
actually working with the city to fund that
extension of utilities to the area.

MR. BLOMGREN: Will that include sewer
as well?

MS. NOBLE: There is some sewer, but I

don't know if it is going directly to this site
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or not, but sewer extension is planned in the
area.

MR. BLOMGREN: And will there be --
since this will be annexed into the city and
become manufacturing M-2, are there -- and since

at least presently there is no access to Eldamain
via Faxon, are there plans to create some access
to Eldamain via Faxon; if not, what is the plan
for the traffic for the semis?

MS. NOBLE: So at this time, since there
is no development plan, no improvements to the
road regarding this property will take place
until there is a development plan, so as it
exists now is how it will remain until the time
such development plans are submitted.

MR. BLOMGREN: Okay. At this point I
have this property under contract, and I've got
to go back and articulate what's going to happen,
whether it's going to be pro or con for these
particular buyers, and I assume if there is going
to be any further meetings, the property owners
will be notified of same, correct?

MS. NOBLE: If there is a request that

requires City Council approval, yes. If it's
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just a building permit or anything that they are
entitled to under their zoning, no.

MR. BLOMGREN: All right. Very good.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you, sir.
Again, 1s there anyone else present who wishes to
speak in opposition to the request?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: And then when it
comes to questions for the commissioners, that
would come after opposition, so if there is
anyone with questions, and there is no one else
with oppositions, we can move on to those who
wish to ask any questions of the petitioner.

Is there anyone here who would like
to ask any questions?
(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: I will take that as
a no as well. All right. Is the petitioner for
2024-08, Hagemann Trust, ready to present? I
believe it's still you as well, sir.

MR. GILBERT: Again, my name 1s Matt
Gilbert, same intro on the land currently owned.

This site we have been working on for almost
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two years on the acqguisition side. We have gone
back and forth with the city in terms of what can
be developed.

The one additional note that I would
add to my previous comments is that right in this
immediate area Com Ed has a set of four
substations with what I understand to be one of
their largest set of substations in their entire
Illinois network.

They have been marketing this for
approximately five years to large data center
users. That was one of the things that attracted
us to the area when we came in to acquire the
first piece of land.

The other piece of note for this
site, specifically the 138 -- approximately 138
and a half acres, this will run along Eldamain
Road, will have access to Eldamain Road subject
to the county's rules and regulations about how
many access points we can have on that site.

We again are wrapping up this
rezoning annexation process as a final step
before acquiring the property, which should

happen later -- later in the year, so thank you
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very much.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. All
right. So with that said, again, this is PZzZC
2024-08, Hagemann Trust. I apologize for needing
to repeat them, but I know we have a lot tonight,
want to make sure nobody is confused. I know I
certainly have been.

Is there anyone who wishes to speak
in favor of this particular request?
(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: And then is there
anyone present who wishes to speak in opposition
to this particular request? Come up, sir.

Sorry. Ma'am.

LISA PRATHER,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MS. PRATHER: My name 1is Lisa Prather
and I live on Eldamain, 1314, and my neighbor and
I are like the two houses that will be surrounded
by this, and I realize that this is going to
happen, like -- and it is really good for our
city, i1t will help the tax revenue and that's all

great.
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My concern is that there's got to be
some kind of idea of a project, and what does
that look like? Because it's got to look like
something.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: No, I agree, and
that's -- so right now we are dealing with the
annexation.

MS. PRATHER: I get that.

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: Once the annexation
is complete, there would be a project proposal
that would come forward.

MS. PRATHER: Should I look in the
Beacon News?

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: I am unsure if it
will be in the Beacon, but, Krysti, correct me if
I am wrong, if they did have a plan proposal, it
would come to the PZC again, correct?

MS. NOBLE: It depends. So what the
petitioner is asking for is just to annex and
rezone the property --

MS. PRATHER: I get that.

MS. NOBLE: -- and hold it as entitled
until such time a development comes.

MS. PRATHER: Oh, vyeah.
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MS. NOBLE: If a development comes and
it meets the standards of the M-2 District that
they are proposing to rezone to, there will not
be any public input. It's a staff level review
making sure that they meet all of the standards
that the code prescribes for uses in industrial
land use.

If it does require any city
approvals, 1f they are seeking something above
and beyond what's permitted outright in the
M-2 District, there may be a public input
process, but at this time since we don't have a
plan and they don't have a user, there is no site
plan to reference or to say how this site would
be developed.

MS. PRATHER: Okay. Well, that's fair,
but this is going to crush my property value.
Like crush it.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: And I completely
understand. I saw those two houses that were
being surrounded by this and I am so happy to see
you folks here tonight.

MS. PRATHER: Yeah.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: And I wanted to ask
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you as well, even 1if we were to approve the
annexation, we as a board could agree on putting
contingencies upon the plan I believe, and
correct me if I am wrong, Krysti.

What would you like to see
personally? I'm sure you would like to see the
site not be developed at all, but is there a
happy medium at all? Would you like fencing-?

MS. PRATHER: ©No, that's not necessarily
true, like there's got to be buffering, there's
got to be like buffering of trees, maybe a fence,
maybe a berm, maybe --

MS. NOBLE: That's part of the
standards. That is already in our code that they
would have to adhere to.

MS. PRATHER: But how far back?

MS. NOBLE: So with industrial next to
residential, it has to be at least a 20-foot
buffer of dense trees --

MS. PRATHER: That's not far enough.

MS. NOBLE: Of dense trees, understory
trees and landscaping shrubs, as well as a fence.
Again, that's just on the perimeter.

There 1s also distances for the
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buildings itself. The buildings would have a
buffering distance of at least 50 feet, depending
on what the site plan is, if they are to meet the
standards of our current M-2 zoning.

Once we have a plan, and if that
plan requires public input because they are
asking for more than what's presented, that's the
opportunity for the Planning and Zoning
Commission to attach conditions.

At this time because there is no
plan, we are only voting on the zoning, and the
annexation is up to City Council.

MS. PRATHER: But the thing is the
zoning is going to affect my property value.

MS. NOBLE: The petitioner can address
that. They had to address it as part of their
comments.

MS. PRATHER: I could move, I could be
bought out. My interest rate is two percent on
my mortgage. Am I going to be compensated if I
have to move from two percent on a 30-year fixed?
Because that's what's the realistic thing here.
You have two homeowners, two, so we're not going

to stop this. We understand that.
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MS. NOBLE: That is not on the purview
of the City Council and the Planning and Zoning
Commission tonight. It's only --

MS. PRATHER: Yeah, but you could say
no.

MS. NOBLE: That's for them -- that is
for them to vote on, not Staff. I am just
presenting the facts that are presented in the
packet.

MS. PRATHER: So am I. These are my
facts, my daily, my future.

MS. NOBLE: Did you want the petitioner
to respond to your comment about --

MS. PRATHER: Sure.

MS. NOBLE: -- property values?

MS. PRATHER: If he would like to, he 1is
more than welcome to.

MS. NOBLE: Yes, please.

MR. GILBERT: So the property value
question is certainly a valid gquestion. We -- as
was stated, we do not have any plans right now to
develop. We don't have a user, we don't have a
site plan.

It's hard to say when we will
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develop, it's hard to say if we will develop, so
we are buying the land to potentially build down
the road.

What I can tell you is this area has
long been in the City's Comprehensive Plan to go
manufacturing, to go M-2, so we were kind of
following the lead of where this was -- you know,
where this type of development was to be directed
in any case.

We are more than willing to discuss
a purchase of property at some point. You know,
we can only deal with, you know, market values,
we can't replace interest rates, stuff like that,
but we are certainly open to a discussion on, you
know, purchasing, you know, various properties
around, but what I can tell you is this -- this
whole area was always earmarked to be
manufacturing and M-2 development -- sorry, M-2
zoning, but we are open to discussions with the
homeowners on purchasing property.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. And
thank you very much for speaking. Is there
anyone else who wishes to speak in opposition?

Please come on up, Ssir.
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BRIAN (no last name supplied),
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. BRIAN: Hello. My name 1is Brian. I
live in Yorkville about a few years now.
Listening to both parties of the 07, 08, and the
lack of confidence in the rebuttal to the plan,
the problem is there is no plan. It's going to
happen. Something will go in. You don't hold
land not to make a profit off of it.

If the plan was to change it to an
M-2, why is it residential, why is it
agricultural? Now, there's got to be plenty of
other M-2 zoning in the area and, i1f not, we can
look into something further away from established
residential.

You can't change the example
two percent interest rate; right now what are we
averaging, seven, eight, with no change as of
right now, nothing even until the end of the
year. So if you want to improve the City of
Yorkville, keep the residents happy, they will
pay their taxes, they will stay here.

Look at Oswego, they were all farm.
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They gladly developed two into one. Granted they
had some push-back back and forth, but this is an
early chance to establish that with the community
rather than go ahead and kick out people.

I live on Blackberry right behind
Home Depot. Once again, the spacing between what
you can see right now, it's like if they plan.

Well, what about the lighting? You

are right on 34. There is already construction
across the street. The farmland is right behind
us, too.

You are looking at potentially
taking the residents that have built there, that
have already paid their taxes, and kicking them
out, and then now they can't afford Kendall
County. They will have to go somewhere. The
closest one in the southwest area would be
Grundy.

You are taking away from the school
district, especially the young children who had
moved here who hoped they could have that
kindergarten to high school ranking up eight --
the eight to ten ranking you do see when you do

move.
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So from what I heard -- I Jjust came
here to listen, and I don't like anything. There
is no confidence. It's all about planning.

Well, plan in the M-2s. They are set there for a
reason. I don't know why you have to encroach on
residents. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you wvery much.
All right. Is there anyone else who wishes to
speak in opposition?

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Sir.

DON BARTALONE,

having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. BARTALONE: My name 1is Don

Bartalone. I live in that same area, and it's
zoned for residential. Why take that away from
us? And we were just talking about -- Mary came

up and said right now we left the neighborhood
and at 7:00 o'clock, these guys are still out
there. They start at 7:00 in the morning and
they're out at 7:00 o'clock at night. They're
still out there.

And, you know, I work for OSHA.

Tomorrow morning I am calling because these guys
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are trenching out there, there is no -- they
don't do anything the right way and I've had
enough of the noise.

But that stuff behind us is supposed
to be for homes. Why are we rezoning it? Let --
if we're going to stay on Eldamain and keep that
for building for factories and stuff, that's
fine, but you are taking away something that they
could put homes there. That's all I've got.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MR. BARTALONE: It's your turn.

NICHOLAS DODD,

having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. DODD: Hi. My name is Nicholas
Dodd. I live at 1286 Eldamain. I am the second
home that's surrounded by this.

When me and my family originally
moved here, we moved here for the schools. We
moved onto Eldamain because we were in the middle
of nowhere. I can teach my kids about dirt
bikes, four wheelers, and not have to worry about
an HOA or anyone else yelling at me because

whatever, the grass is too long, whatever it may
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be.

So we moved there and we were told
when we moved there that there is a possibility
you could buy more acreage. I came up with this
crazy idea to start a bamboo nursery, huge
eco-friendly bamboo nursery. Talked to the USDA
of Illinois, talked to the USDA of the country.

I currently have bamboo seeds
sitting in containment because they have to spend
180 days in containment because they came from
China. That was the only way to get a clean
strand.

But it's just me and my family doing
this, so we didn't have the money to go out and
buy acres and acres of land to do this. When we
were told there is a possibility we could buy,
you know, three, five more acres, we were like
all right, this is -- you know, we're decently
close to town, the town can benefit from it as
well, they get eco credits or whatever it is from
USDA, and I've been working on this for a long
time trying to make it happen, and then I got
this letter in the mail saying this was going to

happen, and now it all makes sense because every
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time I asked the farmer about buying more ground,
they were like oh, maybe, we'll see what happens.
Maybe. No one was upfront about this.

So then I hear everybody on the
council meeting say oh, this has been in our
progressive plan. Okay, was the progressive plan
public? Could I have gone online and found it?

I could have?

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: (Indicating.)

MR. DODD: Okay. That was a gquestion.
So again back to her comment about I am a
one percent mortgage rate. To move my family --
I have two 13-month old twins. To move my family
and get a similar house size, similar property
size to be able to start our dream, we are
looking at about 250 to $300 more than we bought
our house for. I don't have the capital.

Even to sell this house and try and
make that move, that's not going to happen,
especially now that it's been announced that this
will become industrial.

So, again, looking for answers about
what all is going to happen, what all is going to

be available. Said city -- eventually when there
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is a plan, and that's a big if, or when there's
going to be city utilities brought out to us, so
are we given the option to tap in? If so, what's
the cost to us?

And then looking forward, there 1is
no -- since there is no plan, will it continue to
be farmed as Ag on M-2 ground? Because once you
annex it and rezone it, can it be actively
farmed?

MS. NOBLE: It can, yes.

MR. DODD: Okay. So then you're
talking, okay, two, three more years maybe of
farming, but then you're talking about all the
construction traffic on Eldamain.

It's a two-lane road with medians.
How is that going to handle -- It's already busy
enough. Because of Menards we get trucks 24/7,
and I understood that when I moved in, but now
you are talking about 360-degree construction
traffic.

I stood in front of the other city's
board and I asked questions, similar gquestions,
and I got literally no answers because the other

side of the street they're doing the same thing.
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So literally 360 degrees around us will Dbe
construction for the next, what, 10 to 15 years?
I don't know if I want my kids around that.
Thanks.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you as well.
All right. Anyone else who wishes to speak?
Thank you, sir.

MIKE REISENBECK,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. REISENBECK: My name is Mike
Reisenbeck (phonetic). I have an interest in
1314 Eldamain Road. If I can be candid, it
sounds like to me that this is the old proverbial
cart before the horse, a lot of what if's, what
if this, what if that. There is no plan.

I can tell you this, 1314 and the
other property, they become an island, a total
island, so I'm going to ask you, how would you
like if that happened to you? Forget the
financial aspects.

If the annexation -- There was a
meeting on May 12th?

MS. NOBLE: May 1l4th was the public
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hearing.

MR. REISENBECK: Okay, May 14th. What
was the outcome of that?

MS. NOBLE: There was no outcome. It
was a public hearing to gather public input. The
City Council, once this advances, will then make
a determination based off of the recommendation
from this body to annex and rezone.

MR. REISENBECK: Okay. But right now
that is in Plano, correct, that property?

MS. NOBLE: If you are looking at the
address as far as the postal address, the post
office assigns addresses differently than what
the municipality boundaries are, so it may have a
Plano address for mailing purposes, but it will
be annexed into Yorkville, so it will be --

MR. REISENBECK: It will be?

MS. NOBLE: If it's annexed into
Yorkville, it will be a Yorkville property.

MR. REISENBECK: So how can anybody
agree with annexing if they don't know what it's
going to be?

I mean, there is a lack of

information, and the same thing's happened in
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Plano. It's almost like Yorkville and Plano are
in cahoots. I get development growth, but right
now 1314 and the other property are going to
become an island.

So to the purchaser, or the company
that's purchasing the property, rather than wait,
I would suggest they negotiate with the
homeowners now, not -- not when the cart's out of
the -- you know, the horse is out of the barn.
That's too late.

So I would think the prudent thing
would be for them to meet with the homeowners and
let's resolve that issue. I'm trying to think if
there was anything else I wanted to comment on.

I did look online and I could not
find -- the only thing I could find was a
proposal for Yorkville to extend its border to
Eldamain Road because some of it, or a lot of it,
is in Plano currently.

MS. NOBLE: Are you saying you were
looking for the Comprehensive Plan online?

MR. REISENBECK: Yes. Yes. Correct.

MS. NOBLE: Yes. The Comprehensive Plan

was adopted in 2016, it's been online since 2016.
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You just go to the website and do --

MR. REISENBECK: So where do I google?
I google Comprehensive --

MS. NOBLE: You go to yorkville.il.us,
you click on departments, you click on community
development, and everything in regards to
development for Yorkville is on that website as
far as this project, the project information for
this plan as well as other projects that are
currently proposed.

MR. REISENBECK: I am fairly
technologically adept, I couldn't find it.

MS. NOBLE: You can always call the
Community Development Department and we will be
happy to give you a hard copy if you like as well
or show you online and provide you the link.

MR. REISENBECK: Currently is there a --
is there a master plan for this property?

MS. NOBLE: That's the Comprehensive
Plan, and the Comprehensive Plan only designates
land uses. The City does not ascribe plans and
development plans to property we don't own, so we
just ascribe a future land use.

MR. REISENBECK: So this is where I get
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confused. The property currently that the 1314
is on, that property is currently in Plano?
MS. NOBLE: I don't know where that
property 1is located. If it's on the east side of

Eldamain and if it's not incorporated in
Yorkville, it's part of a boundary agreement
between United City of Yorkville and Plano. At
any time in the future that property could annex
to Yorkville. Anything on the west side of
FEldamain would be in the planning area for Plano.
So if it's on the east side, it would be in the
planning area for Yorkville.

MR. REISENBECK: Did I read that that
extension of the boundary of Yorkville to exactly
east of Eldamain hasn't really officially been
done?

MS. NOBLE: I'm not familiar what you're
talking about. So in 2016 we adopted a
Comprehensive Plan. In 2019 Kendall County came
to Yorkville and asked us to revise our
Comprehensive Plan to look at properties along
Fldamain for industrial land uses.

We held a public hearing, we

accepted what Kendall County had envisioned for
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the county in that area, and we revised our
Comprehensive Plan to extend industrial further
north than Yorkville had originally planned for
future land use.

So we identified the Eldamain
corridor, including the Hagemann parcels, as
parcels that would be industrial in the future if
annexed to Yorkville.

MR. REISENBECK: Okay. I guess I'm
going to leave you with a few thoughts. One,
1314 and the other property become an island.
They lost total control of their future. They
are financially going to take a hit. They are
going to state of mind take a hit, and is this
what Yorkville wants to do to its long-term
homeowners?

So my suggestion, again, is --
because it is going to happen, something is going
to happen, there is too much money involved, I
suggest the proposed purchaser start negotiations
now for the property. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. Is
there anyone else who wishes to speak in

opposition?
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(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: I will take that as
a no. Is there anyone who wishes to ask any
questions of the petitioner? I know we kind of
mixed the two, but is there any other qguestions
for the petitioner of this property?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: All right. So that
will close out PZC 2024-08 -- Oh, I'm sorry, sir.

Did you have another question?

MR. DODD: It was more of a statement.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Yeah, of course.

MR. DODD: So as we go through these
hearings and these meetings, I keep hearing well,
that doesn't affect us right now, that doesn't
affect us right now, we are not talking about
that right now, but if their proposed plan falls
under the zoning, we won't get any say.

There is no -- there is no more time
for us to say our words, so here we are getting
our chance to speak and you keep saying over and
over and over we're not talking about that right
now, we can't address that right now, we are not

doing that right now.
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This i1s our only chance because
chances are they are going to do something that
falls within the guidelines and then it all gets
under approved and everything else without any
more words from us, so I just wanted to put that
out there, that this is our shot, this is why
we're saying what we're saying and it kind of
gets drawn out because it's very emotional.

I mean, I told my kids what was
going on and they started crying, they don't want
it, but there is nothing I can do about it except
come here and talk.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: And I was not lying
when I said I am grateful for all you folks
coming out tonight because I was worried about
these myself, and you guys take as much time as
you want, you talk our ears off. I know I might
not speak for everyone on the board, but,
seriously, we are here for you guys, so please
talk as much as you want. If you have qgquestions,
please bring them up.

I am going to try and make sure I
hold time here so that if anyone else has

questions, they come up, you folks can get to
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them, so hope that helps.

MR. DODD: Thanks.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MS. CARRABOTTA: I have one more.

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: Of course. Please.

BATILEY CARRABOTTA,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MS. CARRABOTTA: My name is Bailey
Carrabotta. I also live on Blackberry Shore
Lane. I am just wondering what we can expect in
terms of communication with moving forward
because, like a lot of people have said, there's
been a lack of communication until now.

Like the first that we heard about
this was getting a letter in the mail. We didn't
hear about the May 14th hearing. I didn't know
that I had to search back to 2016 to find
information or that I should even be searching
for that until I received that letter in the
mail, so there is a lot of unanswered guestions
and a lot of concern here, and I think there
needs to be some clarity on what type of

communication we get forward, and I hope the
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answer is not reading the Beacon because it's
kind of B.S.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: I'd like to say
one more thing.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Of course. Please,
come on.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: Again, Mary
Maher-Bartalone. I am on Blackberry Shore Lane
also. I think -- I don't know if I am summing up

what maybe a lot of people are here thinking.

It's one thing when the
Comprehensive Plan is done for the part of the
property that has already been approved, north of
Faxon, but quite another on the big parcel of
land both to the east of Eldamain, south of the
railroad tracks, and also the part northern where
you guys live.

When you approved M zoning when you
have no idea what you're actually going to put
there, maybe it's a little preliminary and it
could wait until there is actually a plan in
place. That's all I will say.

CHATRMAN WILLTIAMS: Thank you. Is there

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

PZC - Public Hearing - June 12, 2024

44

anyone else who wishes to speak? We do have one
more to present, but I want to make sure anyone

who has anything to say gets their chance to say

it.
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: All right. I will
take that as a cue to move forward. Finally, 1is

the petitioner for PZC 2024-15, Cl Yorkville,
LLC, ready to present?

RUSS WHITAKER,
having been first duly sworn, testified from the
podium as follows:

MR. WHITAKER: Yes. Good evening. Russ
Whitaker, Rosanova & Whitaker, 445 Jackson
Avenue, Naperville, this evening on behalf of
CyrusOne.

Krysti, I've got a presentation. It
looks 1like you are working on getting that up.

MS. NOBLE: We've got a couple computers
here we're trying to --

MR. WHITAKER: While she is doing that,
I guess the good news here is we've got plans
here tonight, so we've got active development in

this situation, and while she is working on
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getting those up, I guess a little bit by way of
introduction, for those of you who may not be
familiar with the name CyrusOne, CyrusOne is a
leading global data center, developer and
operator.

They specialize in delivering
state-of-the-art digital infrastructure solutions
for clients ensuring 24/7, 365 operations for
some of the world's largest companies.

CyrusOne owns and operates 32 data
centers in the United States and over 50 data
centers around the world. Here in Illinois
CyrusOne has facilities in both Lombard and
Aurora.

Looking at the subject property
that's the subject of the case before you this
evening, CyrusOne 1is the contract purchaser of
the 228-acre parcel, which is already located and
zoned in the City of Yorkville. I think the
annexation and zoning of this parcel dates back
nearly 20 years.

The property 1is located on the east
side of Eldamain opposite the Menards

Distribution facility. Faxon Road and the train
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tracks set the southern boundary of the property.
Beecher Road is the eastern boundary. The Com Ed
substation with associated right-of-way out to
Fldamain is the northern boundary.

I would note that the area north of
the Com Ed substation, which, if we get there,
identified also as Lincoln Prairie, is not part
of the property being acquired by CyrusOne or
subject to the development proposal tonight.

As I mentioned, the property is
zoned into general manufacturing districts, so
there is no rezoning request here this evening.

Under the City's Unified Development
Ordinance, the proposed use of the property as a
data center and the associated electrical
substation are both permitted uses of the
property; in other words, we could build by right
under the existing zoning.

MS. NOBLE: Do you want us to scroll
down to the land plan?

MR. WHITAKER: Yeah, go ahead and flip
forward. I was kind of talking off of this, so
sometimes I have a cursor and I can control where

you are looking at, but I don't here, so --
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MS. NOBLE: You do. We are going to
give that to you.

MR. WHITAKER: All right. So the
property we are talking about is sort of smack
dab in the middle of the screen. It is --

MS. NOBLE: There is a laser pointer.
Probably can't see it because the light
is probably --

MR. WHITAKER: All right, there we go.

MS. NOBLE: Yes.

MR. WHITAKER: So the 228 acres we are
talking about is located here, kind of identified
by the surrounding roadways. Everybody is from
the area, so I am not going to belabor that
point.

Again, what we are showing here 1is
the City's zoning map. Again, this is
information that's publicly available on the
City's website through the GIS system.

What you're seeing here is the
property is highlighted in purple. That purple
is representative of the M-2 zoning designation,
which is the existing zoning of the property.

That has been the zoning of the property for some
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period of time.

As I stated, the data center and the
electrical substation use that we are talking
about this evening are both permitted uses of the
property in the M-2 zoning district, so, again,
we could come, we could submit a building permit
to the City of Yorkville, and we could go build
by right. That's not what's happening here this
evening, but I think it's important to note that
that is a possibility.

In lieu of building by right, what
we've done is we have submitted an application
for a planned unit development. The goal of the
planned unit development is to establish defined
standards for the project so that we have
certainty over the long-term of the phased
development of the property.

As is outlined in Krysti's Staff
report, the ultimate build-out of the campus that
we are looking at this evening could be 10 to
20 years. With tens of millions of dollars being
invested in infrastructure, we need to ensure
that development standards are not changing two,

five or ten years into the project.
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So here we have a site plan for the
project, and this is not necessarily a guarantee
that this is exactly how this property will be
developed over the, you know, 10 or 20-year life
span of development, but this is our present
vision and how we expect to develop the project
as of today, which is why we have presented these
plans.

In general the campus will consist
of nine two-story data center buildings. Those
buildings can be identified on this plan as the
blue boxes.

Those buildings are generally
oriented around a large electrical substation
that will be constructed for the exclusive
service of the data center buildings. The
substation is identified in the plan in red.

Entrance to the campus is off of
Eldamain. I tried to identify that here. So
there is a single point of ingress and egress on
Fldamain. We have coordinated access with both
the city and the county. Access has been
strategically aligned with the existing access to

Menards, thereby limiting the total number of
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curb cuts and traffic conflicts along Eldamain.

I would note that a security outpost
is planned in this location. Permitted visitors
will enter the site through a two-stage gating
system.

Anyone not admitted will circle to
the north and be directed back out of the site
via Eldamain before entering into the secured
portion of the campus.

The rejection lane that's shown on
the plan, the circle to the north, is designed to
handle both vehicular and truck traffic.

The internal road network circles
around the buildings providing ample space for
maneuvering within the campus.

Note that there will not be cross
access through the campus for public use, but
that there will be cross access provided for the
various buildings, the users, within the campus.

Because this will ultimately be a
secured site as we will discuss, there is just
simply not the opportunity for through roads as
part of the campus.

Parking, a little bit hard to see on
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this scale, but sort of in front of, along kind
of the spine, the internal spine road, you can
see that there is parking slated in front of each
of the buildings.

Each building, in fact, does have
its own sort of parking supply. The concept here
is that within the campus there would be shared
parking amongst the buildings, so if you work in
one building, you might have facilities -- you
might have facilities in multiple buildings, you
could park anywhere on the campus, but we believe
that there is ample supply of parking in the
proposed plan.

The parking does not meet the City's
code requirements. I think the City's code
requirement is three-tenths of a space per
thousand square feet.

CyrusOne has extensive experience in
the industry, sort of specializes specifically on
this type of use. Based on their international
experience, we believe that a slightly lower
parking ratio is appropriate.

I would note that this isn't a site

where we are trying to cram a lot in, right?
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We've got ample room to spread things out on this
campus, so the request to reduce parking is not a
product of we can't fit additional parking, it's
a product of we don't think there is a need for
additional parking, and there is no sense in
building additional asphalt surface requiring
additional detention when the parking simply
isn't necessary.

I would note that a secondary access
point is off of Faxon -- I keep feeling like I'm
going to hit Krysti in the face with this -- but
to the south here is the south access off of
Faxon.

I would note that this is really a
secondary access point. We do not envision that
there would be any access to the site, any
regular access to the site via this location.

There will not be manned security at
this location, so that's why we wouldn't permit
regular access. That is there for egress. If we
have employees who can badge out, they may be
able to use that as an egress point.

Also, 1f there were a problem at the

main entrance, that would be a secondary access
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secured campus. There is a fence proposed around

the entire perimeter of the campus. If you look

closely, you can sort of see that around the

bounds, I will try to point it out a little bit.
You can see the fence designated

here. It wraps around. It is not necessarily

located around the road or immediately adjacent

to the road in all cases. There is some setback

to i1t at various locations.

We are proposing an eight-foot

fence. Again, that fence is going to connect to

the guard station. It's going to create a
secured enclosed perimeter.

The facility in Aurora is built in
very similar manner where there is a two-stage
security system. The full perimeter is fenced
with an eight-foot fence.

I would note wetlands. There are

four wetlands on the property. They are

a

identified in green. You can see the largest of

the wetlands along Eldamain Road.

This is, again, a point where I
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would say there is ample space on this project,
on this property. We are not cramming things in.
In this case we are preserving all four of the
wetlands in their existing condition. We have
ample room for setbacks.

We believe that all of the wetlands
are isolated wetlands under the jurisdiction of
Kendall County and the City of Yorkville. We
will comply with the ordinances with respect to
buffers associated with those wetlands.

Stormwater will obviously be a
requirement. You can see that we have scheduled
stormwater ponds sort of around the perimeter of
the campus.

I think this is both practical in
the sense of it's sort of where drainage wants to
go, right, we don't want to push water uphill, we
want to meet water where it's naturally flowing,
but where we could provide that stormwater along
the perimeter I think provides a natural
enhancement. It's increasing the setback to all
of the surrounding neighbors.

So we heard a lot about what -- you

know, when we are talking about a rezoning, we
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don't have a plan, there is uncertainty. The
nice thing about having a plan here is we are
providing a level of certainty.

One of the things that we are
providing here is an increased setback by
scheduling stormwater ponds around the perimeter
of the property, so certainly for those
residents, the couple of residents who are along
Faxon, I think those stormwater basins are a
material benefit because it's driving those
buildings further to the north and providing far
in excess of the separation that is required
under code, what we could otherwise build.

This is a landscape plan, so very
hard to read at this scale, but i1if we were -- if
you were looking at a printout, what you would
see 1s that we have a schedule of plants along
Eldamain, along Faxon and then along Beecher.

I point to this other one, Beecher.
It's not necessarily again right along the
right-of-way, it's set back a little bit, but
there is a solid row of landscaping proposed in
that location.

I think Krysti mentioned earlier
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that there is different types of perimeter
landscape treatments under the code. In this
case we are showing Type D landscape treatment
along Eldamain. That Type D landscape treatment
is five -- five understory trees, five overstory
trees or evergreens, plus I think it's 35 --

MS. NOBLE: 25.

MR. WHITAKER: 25 either shrubs or
native grasses, so we are talking about a
schedule of ten trees plus grasses and shrubs per
every hundred feet. We've got a couple hundred
feet of length here, so you are going to see a
nice full buffer of landscape along that Eldamain
frontage.

We are showing Type C landscape
treatment along Faxon and Beecher. We are still
working through those issues with Staff. I think
ultimately it's likely that the landscape
treatment along Faxon will be beefed up a little
bit and become Type D in lieu of Type C, but,
again, we are still working through those
details.

I think when we talk about kind of

some of these things beginning to come together,
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I think one of the things we have done a very,
very nice job of is creating some isolation.

Secured campus, right, we're not
looking to market ourselves along Eldamain or
Faxon Roads, we are kind of trying to fade into
the background, and so when you start adding up
some of the things that we're doing, you've got
the Type D landscape buffer along Eldamain Road,
you've got an eight-foot fence along Eldamain
Road, you've got extensive setbacks along
Eldamain Road, those concepts being repeated
along Beecher and along Faxon, and I think from
the public realm you're going to see all of those
open space type improvements in the foreground
and the buildings will very much fade into the
background, so that was absolutely part of our
design intent with the campus, not being real
forward facing, but kind of fading back into the
background of the community.

I'm going to wrap up with a guick
discussion of elevations. So this is a prototype
elevation. I would note that this is a
manufacturing district. At the end of the day,

these are industrial buildings. These are like
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the most expensive industrial buildings you could
possibly imagine, but they are industrial
buildings nonetheless, so it is largely a precast
concrete building. In this case it is a
two-story precast concrete building.

I would just call out a couple of
details as we look at the building. Here the
large gray sections are precast concrete, which
are seen here in the center element, sort of a
lobby that would be the primary entrance.

I would note that if you were
looking at the call-outs and matching them up
with the call-outs at the bottom of the screen,
you would see that they are calling out metal
panel sections, and so those metal panel sections
are meant as decorative elements to kind of help
create some architectural interest on the large
concrete facade of the building, and so you can
see a variety of different types of metal panels
and louver systems along with glass on that front
entry in order to, in fact, create a nice entry
into the building.

I would note that you've got some

metal panel segments on the side and then
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wrapping the corner of the building. We envision
there might be logos or signs in that location.
Again, these are architectural elements that help
to bring a little more interest and character to
the building.

A couple other things I would note.
We didn't talk a lot about the original -- the
perimeter immediately around the buildings, but
one of the things that's unique about a data
center is it's a guarantee of performance, a
guarantee of power, right, and so we have backup
systems in place to make sure that if the power
goes out, the power doesn't go out to our
customers in this building. That's the core of
being in this building.

So there is a large generator yard
associated with each building. That generator
yard is depicted on the bottom here. What I
would point out is that the generators are in the
background here. What you're seeing in the gray
wall in the foreground is a screen wall.
Generally speaking, that's, rough number, a
20-foot screen wall.

Here we've got that screen wall
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specced as a concrete slab screen wall. The
reason it's specced as a concrete slab screen
wall in this instance is that it may be
acoustical.

Kind of the same condition on the
rooftop. We have a lot of mechanical equipment.
Because of all of the computer equipment that's
in a building like this, cooling is very, very
important in order to ensure operation inside the
facility, so there is a lot of cooling eguipment
that gets housed into the mechanical penthouse
located on the roof of the two-story building.

What we're showing here is that that
mechanical penthouse is being screened, again, a
metal panel system which serves as screening
around the building.

The reason I relay these two things
is we recognize that there are mechanical
components associated with the operation of this
building. That mechanical equipment can emit
sound, so what we do as a matter of practice in
development of a building like this is as we
submit for building permit, we are going to work

with an acoustic engineer.
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That acoustic engineer is going to
take the inputs, he is going to look at the
generators, he is going to look at the mechanical
systems going on the roof. He will take
manufacturer specifications, he will build them
out, so from a scientific basis, he is modeling
how sound is going to travel as a result of the
operations of this building, and he is going to
then reverse engineer and design whatever sound
attenuation measures may be necessary in order to
ensure that we, in fact, comply with applicable
noise ordinances, whether it's a city ordinance
or whether it's Illinois Pollution Control Board
requirements related to noise attenuation between
industrial and residential uses.

So that's kind of a high level of
detail of what we've got going on. There is some
stuff that's in -- there is a lot of stuff that's
in Krysti's report, she is very thorough, went
through a lot of detail that was in our petition.

I wanted to kind of -- I think it's
better to kind of tell these as a story and
understand how the facility operates rather than

talking about while we are requesting relief from
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this, we're not talking about how all these
things work together, so I hope that was helpful.

If there are questions about the
specific details or some of the other requests
for relief we have, I would be happy to answer
them. I would just -- and I guess by way of
pointing it out -- if I could, I would back up a
slide, but that doesn't seem to be working.

So if we were on the landscape plan,
there is some relief with respect to the
landscaping. By way of example, we are trying to
landscape very heavily and focus on the perimeter
of the site.

The interior of the site is not
going to be seen by the public. It's, like I
said, a secured entrance, no one driving through,
and these buildings are going to be hiding the
vast majority of the site, so by way of example,
we are showing some parking lot island trees, but
we don't think it's going to be beneficial to
install a tree every 20 feet because of the
unigque use of the property.

We think it's going to be beneficial

due to the industrial operation inside the
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facility to reduce some of the internal landscape
requirements.

So there are some things 1like this
based on our historic operation of these
facilities that we have suggested would be
appropriate in this application.

I think Staff has generally
supported those requests. If there are any
specific gquestions on those items, though, we
would be happy to dive into detail.

I also have Bradd Hout. Bradd is
the development director with Cyrus and he does
campuses like this all around the country, so
whether it's Bradd or I, we will patch it
together and answer any questions you might have.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you, sir. All
right. So with that said, is there anyone who
wishes to speak in favor of this particular
request?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Is there anyone who
wishes to speak in opposition?

(No response.)
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CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Are there any
additional questions for the petitioner at this
time? Come on up, sir.

MR. BARTALONE: Do I have to go all the
way over there?

CHATRMAN WILLTIAMS: No, you can just --

MS. NOBLE: We can't -- we do need --

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: We do need you at
the mic because we do record it for the public.

MR. BARTALONE: I was wondering what the
decibel level was going to be for the generators.
Don Bartalone. What's the -- you know, you said
you've got all the generators that are coming on
and cooling. What's the decibel level?

MR. WHITAKER: So we have not -- we have
not done a building permit set yet, so in terms
of process -- there's been a lot of conversation
about process today, right, so we are submitting
for a preliminary plan.

So when we submit for a preliminary
plan, we kind of tell you the sewer line is going
to go here, the building is going to go here,
here is how many parking spaces we are going to

have.
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What we don't tell you is the exact
depth of the sewer line or what that sewer line
is going to be constructed of, so --

MR. BARTALONE: Gotcha.

MR. WHITAKER: -—- that will be final
engineering. After we get through final
engineering, we will go to the next step, and the
next step is a building permit, and when we do a
building permit we will give you the
specifications about how those panels connect
together on the building and we will tell you all
of the mechanical equipment that's going in this
building.

We are not there yet, but when we do
get there, we will provide the city a report of
all of that equipment and we will have an
acoustical engineer study the equipment and tell
you what that acoustical level is and whether or
not we need to wrap that or screen that in order
to reduce the decibel level so that it doesn't
impact surrounding areas.

MR. BARTALONE: I was just wondering
because you have stuff in Aurora, so —--

MR. WHITAKER: We do. Absolutely. And
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there is three generations. There is three
buildings in Aurora, and so the first building
was constructed circa 2016 and we are dealing
with some sound attenuation on some of that
equipment. There 1is some newer equipment that we

don't have problems with. So we are actively
working with the City of Aurora right now.

We are doing a similar sound study
on stuff that was built before -- Cyrus didn't
build it, they bought it, and so we are going
back and we are trying to recreate and figure out
how we can correct some sound issues.

MR. BARTALONE: Yeah, because my concern
is you said you are by Menards. At 4:00 o'clock
in the morning we hear the trucks in our
neighborhood, don't we?

And I know a lot of them have the
mufflers. They don't have mufflers, they've
straight pipes on them, you know. I was just
wondering what kind of noise would come out of

your building.

At 4:00 o'clock we hear -- I mean, I
get up. It's like an alarm for me. So that was
my concern, what was the -- you know, because you
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said I've got a lot of -- we've got a lot of
generators that are going to start up.

MR. WHITAKER: And, generally speaking,
those generators aren't going -- the generators
are running when we are testing them, and we are
generally going to test them once a month. We
are not going to test them at 4:00 a.m., I can
pretty much promise you that.

When we test them once a month,
there could -- there will be sound, there will be
because we are running them, but the hope is
other than the testing we are never running those
generators because we are only running them when
the power is out, so there is not any sort of
regular operation of generators.

MR. BARTALONE: And what you Jjust said,
when the power is out, and how long can the power
be out and then they're going to be running and
that's what my concern is.

MR. WHITAKER: Understood.

MR. BARTALONE: Are we going to get
that -- Because there is not a lot of stuff up
around your -- the other building, it's going to

be nice and empty until they fill it all in,
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we're going to hear all that because it's like a
wind tunnel coming over here at my house and we
hear all of the stuff, so that was my --

MR. WHITAKER: Yes, and that is exactly
why we have things like a sound wall scheduled
around the generators, and that sound wall is
going to make sure that the sound is not leaving
that generator --

MR. BARTALONE: Got 1it.

MR. WHITAKER: -- and going directly to
your house.

MR. BARTALONE: That's why I asked.

MS. NOBLE: I can add a little bit. The
City was concerned about that as well and we
hired a sound engineer to evaluate the
preliminary plan.

The preliminary plan itself doesn't
give enough information to tell you what the
decibel level is. We do have a noise ordinance
in the city and the engineer provided a report
and said that they are confident based upon just
general practices for noise control screening,
compression wraps, that this property can meet

the noise ordinance standards, but we will be
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evaluating the equipment choices that they make
during the building permit process with a third
party as well, not hired by the petitioner, but
by the city.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. Are
there any additional questions? Please.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: Just a quick
question.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: No, of course.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: Again, Mary

69

Maher-Bartalone. Just a quick question. Do you

know the approximate height of these two-story
buildings?

MR. WHITAKER: 55 feet.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: 55 feet, okay.
And then if down the line Cyrus were to Dbe
getting involved with the purchase of the
additional properties that are surrounding it,
could we anticipate it to be a similar sort of
layout situation with the buildings and the

55 feet high?

MR. WHITAKER: So to clarify, 55 feet 1is

to the roof line. The mechanical penthouse would

be above that and wrapped with the mechanical
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screen, so I think the top, the top of the
mechanical penthouse, is about 70 feet. I
believe that at 70 feet we're still 30 feet or so
under code requirement, so we are well within
code limitations.

So we have got -- we also have the
piece of property to the north of the access
drive, so that's part of the parcel we are
buying, not slated for development just yet.

The build-out plan here is estimated
10 to 20 years, it's all going to be driven based
on demand of the market and supply of
electricity, so we think we've got a very good
run in front of us on this site.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: What about to the
south?

MR. WHITAKER: I wouldn't speculate that
we are chasing any other property.

MS. MAHER-BARTALONE: Okay.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you.

MR. BRIAN: Once again, Brian. This
kind of relates to overall if you look how close
it is to Menards, Eldamain is being impinged

already. That's more a question towards the
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City, do we have -- can Eldamain and even smaller
behind it, Beecher, handle the increase in
traffic?

MS. NOBLE: So with this project they
are required to do road improvements. In the
packet Staff has recommendations for road
improvements along Faxon and potentially Beecher.

The City does not have jurisdiction
over Eldamain, that's Kendall County Highway, and
they have reviewed the plans, and they would be
the ones issuing the permit for access off of
Eldamain.

MR. BRIAN: Does it specify by
improvement, 1is this Jjust a vague gesture for
now, whether it's widening or specific mentions
like that?

MS. NOBLE: So it's specific and there
is a cost estimate to it, so there is a
cross-section that's been provided that's in the
packet that the city engineer would recommend for
the lane use of this site because right now it
cannot handle any truck traffic along Faxon or
Beecher.

MR. BRIAN: And what about traffic
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lights? There is the YMCA just south of those
two locations with a bunch of children.

MS. NOBLE: Correct.

MR. BRIAN: And with the increase of
traffic, does that include the constructed
improvement?

MS. NOBLE: So because Eldamain would be
the intersection where a traffic light would
possibly go, the City does not have jurisdiction
over that. That would be Kendall County Highway.

MR. BRIAN: Okay.

MR. WHITAKER: Just to dovetail on those
things, we do not expect that there would be a
stoplight at the intersection with Menards.

I would note that a data center use
is going to be one of the lowest possible traffic
generators you would have in a manufacturing
district.

While there is a work force that
would be associated with it, a wvisitor at Aurora,
there is a number of operating engineers that are
in the building constantly monitoring the
facilities to make sure that those facilities are

up and operational if we need them, but, in
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general, we've got almost two and a half million
square feet of total building area here. The
overall traffic load is anticipated to be very
low.

We've worked with KLOA, which is a
traffic engineer. We haven't actually submitted
the traffic study to the City yet, but I did talk
to the engineer today and they are close.

We kind of ran into a hiccup in that
we originally had a plan with two or three access
points on Eldamain and then another access point
on Faxon. The County objected to that. We met
with the County, we worked with the County, and
we have revised the plan as you see it today. We
are entirely comfortable with this plan at this
point in time, but our traffic engineer 1is
obviously catching up.

That being said, he has scheduled
what he believes to be peak hour traffic, which
is what everybody should be focused on. If we
have built the full two and a half million square
feet, in the weekday -- the weekday a.m. peak
hour, we are talking about 270 trips. In a

weekday evening peak hour, we are talking about
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220 total trips. It's a combination of
in-and-out trips, so in the grand scheme of
industrial manufacturing uses, that is extremely,
extremely low.

An office building of ten percent
its size would be generating those kind of trip
loads, so this will be a very high driver in
terms of property tax wvalue. This will drive
electric tax revenue like the city has not seen
before.

I would venture to guess that this
site probably becomes the single largest taxpayer
in the United City of Yorkville, and, as a result
of it, you will get very little traffic on your
surrounding roads.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. Were
there any other questions for the petitioner?
And, like I said, I will hold for a couple
minutes. Yes, ma'am.

MS. PRATHER: Hi. My question is how
much power do these data centers pull from our
grid and like does that affect our house?

Because I don't have time to go like

all Erin Brockovic, I want to know that like I am
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going to be healthy, it's not going to like emit
something into the air that's going to damage me
or his little ones or anyone around us.

MR. WHITAKER: I don't have the -- 1
don't have the power consumption numbers in front
of me, but there is an extraordinary amount of
power that's being consumed by these data centers
that are full of computers.

In terms of emission, there is
absolutely nothing. It's computers inside the
facility. In certain other applications, in
Aurora, by way of example, we have communication
towers. There are no communication towers here,
so there is no RF or anything else that would be
associated with this. It's computers.

CHATRMAN WILLIAMS: Do you have any idea
how much power will be pulled from a substation
versus from the local grid? Because I did notice
you have a substation on the property.

MR. WHITAKER: Yes. So, I mean, we will
be interconnecting high voltage -- high voltage,
medium voltage?

MR. HOUT: High voltage.

MR. WHITAKER: High voltage from the
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existing substation to the substation on our
site. The substation on our site will be used to
feed this facility and the developer will be
responsible for the construction of the
substation on our site, so that is infrastructure
costs that we are bearing.

I would also note that the utility
improvements that were being discussed as part of
other cases are also largely being borne by this
development, so water extensions to the north, to
the east, to the south, and then sanitary sewer
connections to the east and to the south are all
being borne, so there are I think -- I believe
it's in excess of $10,000,000 in utility upgrades
that are being borne by this facility subject to
some cost recapture over an extended period of
time.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. All
right. Are there any other questions for the
petitioner?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Like I said, I'll
hold a minute, so if anyone thinks of anything,

they can certainly come forward.
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All right. So with that said, since
all public testimony regarding this petition has
been taken, may I have a motion to close the
taking of testimony and this public hearing?

MS. GOINS: So moved.

MR. MILLEN: Second.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Thank you. Roll
call vote on the motion, please.

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Williams.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Forristall.

MR. FORRISTALL: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Hyett.

MR. HYETT: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Goins.

MS. GOINS: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Millen.

MR. MILLEN: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: And Vinyard.

(No response.)

MS. YOUNG: Vinyard.

CHAIRMAN WILLIAMS: That's a yes.

MS. YOUNG: Thank you.

CHATRMAN WILLTIAMS: All right. The
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public hearing portion of tonight's meeting is
now closed.
(Which were all the proceedings had
in the public hearing portion of
the meeting, concluding at 8:22
p.m.)

---00o---
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:
COUNTY OF LASALLE )

I, CHRISTINE M. VITOSH, a Certified
Shorthand Reporter of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify:

That previous to the commencement
of any testimony heard, the witnesses were duly
sworn to testify the whole truth concerning the
matters herein;

That the foregoing public hearing
transcript, Pages 1 through 80, was reported
stenographically by me by means of machine
shorthand, was simultaneously reduced to
typewriting via computer-aided transcription
under my personal direction, and constitutes a
true record of the testimony given and the
proceedings had;

That the said public hearing was taken
before me at the time and place specified;

That I am not a relative or employee or
attorney or counsel, nor a relative or employee
of such attorney or counsel for any of the
parties hereto, nor interested directly or

indirectly in the outcome of this action.
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I further certify that my certificate
attached hereto applies to the original
transcript and copies thereof signed and
certified under my hand only. I assume no
responsibility for the accuracy of any reproduced
copies not made under my control or direction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set my
hand at Leland, Illinois, this 1st day of June,

2024.

o) Chrcatone W itzak

CHRISTINE M. VITOSH,
C.S.R. Certificate No. 084-02883
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Memorandum

To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Sara Mendez, Planner |
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
Date: June 25, 2024
Subject: PZC 2024-12 102 S Worsley Street (Rezone) —
Residential Rezoning from R-1 to R-2

SUMMARY:

The petitioners, Steve Holland, contract purchaser, and Peter McKnight, owner, are seeking rezoning
approval for an approximately 0.28-acre parcel at 102 Worsley Street in Yorkville, lllinois. The property is
located south of East Main Street, immediately east of Worsley Street, and north of the Fox River in
Yorkville, lllinois. The property is currently zoned R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residence District and is
vacant. The petitioners are seeking to rezone the property to R-2 Single-Family Traditional Residence
District with the intention of constructing a multigenerational single-family home.

102 WORSLEY ST

United City of Yorkville, Illinois
Date: April 9, 2024
File Location: I\ ARCGIS TEMPLATES:\102 WORSLEY ST




PROPERTY BACKGROUND:

As preV|oust mentloned the property is Iocated south of East Main Street, immediately east of Worsley

y ) y ) £ @ Street, and north of the Fox

i River. The parcel is

approximately 11,969 square

§ feet. Due to the property being

P slightly smaller than the required

B¢ minimum lot size of 12,000 for

g the requested R-2  zoning

classification, the petitioners are
also seeking a variance.

\ The property is located in the
older part of town in the historic
Bristol area and once had a two-
story home which faced the Fox
| River. The home was constructed
g in 1900 and in its original
® condition, the home had 4 beds, 2
baths, and was 1,862 square feet.
However, according to the
petitioner, the home had been
vacant for the last 10 years until
d the parcel was purchased on June
| 21, 2022 and the home and
detached garage were
subsequently demolished
i pursuant to a building permit.
The parcel in its current state is
shown in the photo to the left.

It is also important to note, the
- property is adjacent to Worsley
- Street, an unimproved dedicated
future right-of-way. The right-of-
way is located to the west of the
property and is planned to
connect it to Gawne Lane to the
north.

PROPOSED REQUEST:

The petitoners are seeking to rezone the parcel from R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residence District to R-
2 Single-Family Traditional Residence District to construct a single-family multi-generational home. A
multi-generational home typically houses more than one adult generation of family members in the same
home. The living arragments can include grandparents, parents, and their adult children. It can also include
extended family and in-laws. According to the petitioners, the purpose of the rezoning is to have the
property zoned in a way that is more applicable to the actual size of the property and to allow them to have
smaller setbacks that would accommodate the design of the home.




Initially, staff was concerned if the R-2 Single-Family Traditional Residence District was the most
appropriate zoning district based on the site plans, which could be interpreted as multi-family housing.
However, after a review of the plans by Pete Ratos, Building Code Official, the site plans properly reflect
a single-family structure. Per Mr. Ratos’s comment, “In the case of a structure like this the defining factor
between single family and multifamily would be interconnectivity of the spaces. In the case of this home
there is a main center staircase the interconnects all three levels and the common living areas. In my opinion
this design would not be conducive to multifamily use but would work well for a multi-generational home.
The 2018 IRC provides us with the minimal facilities required for habitable space but it does not put a cap
on the number of those minimally the required facilities per structure. | will make sure to reiterate to the
owner that this is a single-family home and cannot be treated as a multifamily home in any way shape or
form.”

SITE ANALYSIS:

To consider the appropriateness for the rezoning request, an evaluation of the surrounding land uses and
zoning is conducted. The immediate vicinity of 102 Worsley Street is primarily zoned residential, as
illustrated in the table below.

Zoning Land Use

North R-2 Single-Family Vacant
Traditional Residence District

South Fox River Water Course

East R-1 Single-Family Single-Family Home
Suburban Residence District

West R-3 Multi-Family Multi-Family Home

Attached Residence District



Although the proposed single-family home is consistent with the existing surrounding zoning and land
uses, the proposed property still requires one (1) variance to comply with the requested R-2 Single-Family
Traditional Residence Standards. The variance pertains to the minimum lot size, as detailed in the table
below.

REGULATIONS CURRENT PROPOSED PROPOSED VARIANCE

ZONING ZONING SITE PLAN DIFFERENCE
R1 R2 ST
REGULATIONS REGULATIONS

Minimum Lot 18,000 sq. ft. 12,000 sq ft 11,969 sq. ft. Decrease of 31

Size square feet

Maximum Lot 100 feet 80 feet 80 feet -

Width

Minimum Front 40 feet 30 feet 30 feet -

Setback

Minimum Side 15 feet 10 feet 16 feet -

Yard Setback

Minimum 40 feet 30 feet 30 feet -

Corner Side

Yard Setback

Minimum Rear 50 feet 40 feet 45 feet -

Setback

Maximum 30 feet 30 feet 27 feet -

Building Height

Maximum Lot 50% 45% 13% -

Coverage

The variance needed is not a significant change to the standards of the R-2 zoning district and align with
the character of the neighborhood as illustrated in the aerial below.

b 1 i , 5 S5
. 3 2 )/ P
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COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

According to Yorkville’s Comprehensive Plan, the subject property’s future land use is classified as
“Suburban Neighborhoods” which is intended to create well-designed, walkable neighborhoods that
incorporate open space and appropriate linkages to surrounding districts or areas. The current land use and
the proposed detached single-family home are consistent with Yorkville’s Comprehensive Plan.

STAFE COMMENTS:

Staff is supportive of the proposed rezoning request of the property located at 102 Worsley Street from R-
1 Single-Family Suburban Residence District to R-2 Single-Family Traditional Residence District. The
proposed rezoning falls in line with the standards of the R-2 district and is consistent with the existing
surrounding zoning and land use in the area. Lastly, the proposed rezoning request is consistent with
Yorkville’s Comprehensive Plans.

REZONING STANDARDS:

Section 10-8-12 Map Amendments of the Unified Development Ordinance establishes criteria for findings
of fact related to rezoning (map amendment) requests. When the purpose and affect is to change the zoning
of a property and amend the City’s Zoning Map, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider each
of the following facts before rendering a decision on the request. The petitioner has provided answers to
each of the criteria in the application these standards which are included in the packet for your review and
will be entered into the public record as part of the public hearing process. The standards are:

1. The existing uses and zoning of nearby property.
2. The extent to which the property values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions.

3. The extent to which the destruction of the property values of plaintiff promotes the health, safety,
morals, or general welfare of the public.

4. The relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property
owner.

5. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purpose.

6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the area in the vicinity of the subject property.

7. The community need for the proposed use.
8. The care to which the community has undertaken to plan its land use development.
Additional UDO standards:

1. The proposed Map Amendment s consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the purposes of the
UDO.

2. The proposed Map Amendment is consistent with the existing and planned uses and zoning of the
nearby properties.

The subject property is suitable for the purposes of the proposed district.

4. The proposed Map Amendment will not result in an individual parcel zoned in one zoning district
that is not shared by the adjacent parcels.

5. The proposed parcel(s) to be rezoned shall meet the minimum frontage and area requirements of
the requested rezoning district as specified in Section 10-3-9(A).



PROPOSED MOTION:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on July 10, 2024 and discussion of the
findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council a
request for rezoning from R-1 Single-Family Suburban Residence District to R-2 Single-Family
Traditional Residence District for a proposed multi-generational single-family home, for a property
located at 102 Worsley Street {insert any additional conditions of the Planning and Zoning
Commission}...

ATTACHMENTS:

Rezoning Application

Legal Description

Plat of Survey (photograph)

Site Plans

Property Owners Within 500 Feet
Public Hearing Notice

ocogakrwhE



United City of Yorkville 651
APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

INTENT AND PURPOSE

Rezoning is a type of map amendment which allows for the reclassification of a property’s zoning district. A request for rezoning
must not be arbitrary. There are several land use factors which are considered during the review process for a rezoning request
including the suitability of surrounding land uses and zoning districts, local development trends, potential traffic impacts, and the
overall public health and safety of the community.

This packet explains the process to successfully submit and complete an Application for Rezoning. It includes a detailed description
of the process, outlines required submittal materials, and contains the application for rezoning.

For a complete explanation of what is legally required throughout the Special Use process, please refer to “Title 10, Chapter 4,
Section 7: Amendments” of the Yorkville, lllinois City Cade.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

STEP SUBMIT APPLICATION, FEES, AND PLANS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT.
1 The following must be submitted:
O One (1) original signed and notarized application.
APPLICATION [0 Legal description of the property in Microsoft Word.
9 Y
SUBMITTAL

0 Three (3) copies each of the exhibits, proposed drawings, location map, and site plan. All exhibits
and plans must be an appropriate size for all details and descriptions to be legible.

[0 Appropriate application and filing fee. Checks may be written to the United City of Yorkville.
O Signed Applicant Deposit Account/Acknowledgment of Financial Responsibility form.
O Onre (1) electronic capy (PDF) of all materials submitted including application and exhibits.

Within one (1) week of submittal, the Community Development Department will determine if the
application is complete or if additional information is needed. An incomplete submittal could delay the
scheduling of the project.

The petitioner is responsible for payment of recording fees and public hearing costs, including written
transcripts of the public hearing and outside consultant costs (i.e. legal review, land planner, zoning
coordinator, environmental, etc.). The petitioner will be required to establish a deposit account with the
City to cover these fees.

Once a submitted and complete, Community Development staff will provide a tentative schedule of
meetings as well as all needed documents for the process.

STEP MEETS ON THE 2ND & 4TH THURSDAY OF THE MONTH

2 The petitioner must present the proposed request to the Plan Council. The members of the Council

include the Community Development Director, City Engineer, the Building Department Official, the
Public Works Director, the Director of Parks and Recreation, a Fire Department Representative, and a
Police Department Representative. This meeting is held to provide the petitioner with guidance from
all City staff departments to ensure the petitioner is aware of all requirements and regulations for their
development. Upon recommendation by the Plan Council, the petitioner will move forward to the
Economic Development Commitiee.

PLAN
COUNCIL
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United City of Yorkville 651 c A N o R
Prairie Pointe Drive A P P L l T l o F

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Zo N | N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

MEETS ON THE 1ST TUESDAY OF THE MONTH

The petitioner must present the proposed plan to the Economic Development Committee. The committee
consists of four alderman who will provide feedback to the petitioner regarding their request. This
feedback allows the petitioner to gather comments and concerns prior to full City Council considerations.
It also allows the City Council members to review the request prior to its arrival at City Council.

MEETS ON THE 2ND WEDNESDAY OF THE MONTH

The petitioner will attend and present their request at a public hearing conducted by the Planning and
Zoning Commission. The Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing on the request,
take public comments, discuss the request, and make a recormmendation to City Council. No rezoning
request shall be recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission unless it follows the standards
set forth in City's Zoning Ordinance.

The petitioner is responsible for sending certified public hearing notices to adjacent property owners
within five hundred (500) feet of the subject property no less than fifteen (15) days and nc more than thirty
(30) days prior to the public hearing date. The public hearing notice will be drafted by the City as well as
published in a local newspaper. Additionally, a public hearing notice sign must be placed on the property
no less than fifteen (15) days priar to the public hearing.

A certified afidavit must be fled by the petitioner with the Community Development Department
containing the names, addresses and permanent parcel numbers of all parties that were notified. The
Certified Mailing Affidavit form is attached to this document.

MEETS ON THE 2ND & 4TH TUESDAY OF THE MONTH

The petitioner will attend the City Council meeting where the recommendation of the special use will be
considered. City Council will make the final approval of the special use. If approved, City staff will have a
drafted ordinance to be signed by the Council and must be recorded with the County Clerk before any
further steps may be taken by the petitioner.

SUMMARY OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Below is a summary breakdown of what will be required by the petitioner and what will be completed by the City:

PETITIONER
Oooooao

Signed and Notarized Application
Required Plans, Exhibits, and Fees
Certified Mailing of Public Notice
Signed Certified Affidavit of Mailings
Attendance at All Meetings

Detailed Schedule After Complete Submission
Public Hearing Notice Language

Posting of the Public Notice in a Local Newspaper
Public Hearing Sign Application

CITY STAFF
oonoo0oa

Draft Ordinance & Signatures for Recording



United City of Yorkville 651 N F 0 R
Prairie Pointe Drive A P P L I c AT I o

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

SAMPLE MEETING SCHEDULE

MONTH 1 MONTH 2 MONTH 3 MONTH 4
Ssu | M | Tu | w | Th| F |sa su | M |[Tu| W /|Th| F | sa Su | M | Tu | W | Th | F | sa su | M | Tu|W/|Th|F|sa
g 71 ] [ kr 7 i 1 4 3 1 2 g I 3 0 3 3
B [E] 3 13 14 3 u I8 d o 11 12 I H F 6 J ] &l T 11 12 E [
1 L6 17 18 19 20 1 1o i1 12 E 11 15 g 5 16 i i 15 19 fa 21
] o3 ] 5 L X = T [EX (T T o R Pz = i) s I AR F R
2 B0 oz} = 6 27 F o E0 ri 50 T
Plan Council Meeting Economic Development Planning & Zoning Commission City Council
Committee Public Hearing
Meeting Date Updated Materials Submitted for Meeting

This is a sample of what a schedule may look like after submission. The Step 1 Submission must be completed before the Plan
Council Meeting can be scheduled. This timeline represents an ideal schedule. Throughout the review process, there may be
requests or changes to the submission requested by the committees which may delay the meeting schedule. As illustrated, there
is a small amount of time between meeting dates and the deadline for updated materials to be submitted for review. Depending
on the complexity and nature of the request, this timeline may be extended to give the petitioner and staff enough time to review
requested updates to the submission.

DORMANT APPLICATIONS

The Community Development Director shall determine if an application meets or fails to meet the submission requirements. If the
Director determines that the application is incomplete it will become dormant under these circumstances:

« The applicant has been notified of such deficiencies and has not responded or provided a time line for completing the
application within ninety (90) days from the time of notification.

« The applicant has not responded in writing to a request for information or documentation from the initial planning and
zoning commission review within six (6) months from the date of that request.

+ The applicant has not responded to a request for legal or engineering deposit replenishment for city incurred costs and fees
within ninety (90) days from the date of the request.

If the Community Development Director has sent the required notice and the applicant has not withdrawn their application
or brought it into compliance, then the director shall terminate the application. After termination, the application shall not be
reconsidered except after the filing of a completely new application,

Withdrawal or termination of an application shall not affect the applicant’s responsibility for payment of any costs and fees, or any
other outstanding debt owed to the city. The balance of any funds deposited with the city that is not needed to pay for costs and
fees shall be returned to the applicant. (Ord. 2011-34, 7-26-2017)
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Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E z 0 N ING
Fax: 630-553-7575
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Ly -

INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION
CONCEPT PLAN REVIEW Engineering Plan Review deposit ~ $500.00 Total: $
AMENDMENT [ Annexation $500.00
Plan $500.00 ke
1 Plat $500.00 :
] PUD. $500.00
ANNEXATION [ $250.00 + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres
Total: §
-5= x$10= +5250=§
# of Acres Acres over 5 / Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount
REZONING E(SZO0.0D + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres -
Ifannexing and rezoning, charge only 1 per acre fee; if rezoning to a PUD, charge PUD Development Fee - not Rezoning Fee 7 sO »
Total: $
-5= x$10= +4$200=§
# of Acres Acres over 5 Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount
SPECIAL USE (1] $250.00 + $10 per acre for each acre over 5 acres
Total: $
-5= x510= +5250=$
# of Acres Acres over 5 Amount for Extra Acres Total Amount
ZONING VARIANCE (] $85.00 + $500.00 outside consultants deposit Total: §
PRELIMINARY PLAN FEE 1 $500.00 Total: §
PUD FEE ] $500.00 Total: §
FINAL PLAT FEE 1 $500.00 Total: §
ENGINEERING PLAN [T Less than 1 acre $5,000.00
REVIEW DEPOSIT L] Over 1aare, less than 10 acres $10,000.00
(1 Over 10 acres, less than 40 acres $15,000.00 Total: $
(] Over 40 acres, less than 100 acres ~ $20,000.00
L] Over 100 acres $25,000.00
QUTSIDE CONSULTANTS DEPOSIT (Legal, land planner, zoning coordinator, environmental services
For Annexation, Subdivision, Rezoning, and Special Use:
(] Less than 2 acres $1,000.00 Total: $
[ Over 2 acres, less than 10 acres $2,500.00
(] Over 10 acres $5,000.00
p—
TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: Zo-




Praite e ive APPLICATION FOR

[e]
s\ |\ Yorkville, lilinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N l N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

DATE: PZC NUMBER: DEVELOPMENT NAME:

PETITIONER INFORMATION

NAME: Steve Holland COMPANY:

MAILING ADDRESS: 819 Columbus Dr.

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Oswego, IL 60543 TELEPHONE: O BUSINESS ®HOME 847-489-5713

EMAIL:  steve.holland@beachfordogs.com FAX:

PROPERTY INFORMATION

NAME OF HOLDER OF LEGALTITLE:
IF LEGALTITLE IS HELD BY A LAND TRUST, LIST THE NAMES OF ALL HOLDERS OF ANY BENEFICIAL INTEREST THEREIN:

PROPERTY STREET ADDRESS: 102 Waorsley St, Yorkville, IL 60560

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY'S PHYSICAL LOCATION:

Pﬂiﬂﬂ»}/ SS g4 Fhe Ny Sile 0F Fte (2o

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION: R-1 REQUESTED ZONING CLASSIFICATION: R-2

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: R-2 TOTAL ACREAGE: .28

ZONING AND LAND USE OF SURROUNDING PROPERTIES

NORTH: R-1

EAST.  R-1

SOUTH: River

WEST:  R-1

KENDALL COUNTY PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER(S)

O)—3F3-1/Z9—00Y%




Praie poiteDrve. APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

ATTORNEY INFORMATION

NAME: =57 s @ ([, mrte ouant: (o JWi ke \ay

-

MAILING ADDRESS: '(D o S. MOV]:C:P"\- 02 5(_’.‘1-6 #-/00

asSUE TR Sy e regpe. Tt ETY THRIONE 635 Yeh - ) b 0O
AL Jhumtde —lac)M 630 -4os- T2

ENGINEER INFORMIATION

NAME: Jiun-Guang Lin COMPANY: Ridgeline Consultants

MAILING ADDRESS: 1661 Aucutt Road

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Montgomery, IL 60538 TELEPHONE: 630-801-7927

EMAIL: jlin@ridgelineconsultantslic.com FAX:

LAND PLANNER/SURVEYOR INFORMATION

NAME: COMPANY:
— & (1\‘
MAILING ADDRESS: % VAJ/MQ /
Z
CITY, STATE, ZIP: TELEPHONE
EMAIL: FAX:
ATTACHMENTS

Petitioner must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as “Exhibit A"

Petitioner must list the names and addresses of any adjoining or contiguous landowners within five hundred (500) feet of the property that are entitled notice
of application under any applicable City Ordinance or State Statute. Attach a separate list to this application and title it as “Exhibit B".

Sec Pk Suaey




United City of Yorkville 651
praiie Pornte Driv APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z o N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

REZONING STANDARDS

PLEASE STATE THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATION(S) AND USES OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPOSED REZONED PROPERTY:

Existing zone class is R-1 - Residential
Proposed zone class is R-2 - Residential

PLEASE STATE THETREND OF DEVELOPMENT, IF ANY, INTHE GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION, INCLUDING CHANGES, IF ANY, WHICH HAVETAKEN PLACE SINCE
THE DAY THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION WAS PLACED IN TS PRESENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION:

NONE

PLEASE STATE THE EXTENT TO WHICH PROPERTY VALUES ARE DIMINISHED BY THE PARTICULAR ZONING RESTRICTIONS:

Property value will increase

PLEASE STATE THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY VALUES OF PETITIONER PROMOTES THE HEALTH, SAFETY, MORALS, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE
PUBLIC:

NOT APPLICABLE




e APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

REZONING STANDARDS

PLEASE STATE THE LENGTH OF TIME THE PROPERTY HAS BEEN VACANT AS ZONED CONSIDERED IN THE CONTEXT OF LAND DEVELOPMENT IN THE AREA IN THE VICINITY OF
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:

(0 yeses.

PLEASE STATE THE COMMUNITY NEED FOR THE PROPOSED LAND USE:

Improvement/use of river as a resource for enjoyment

WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, PLEASE STATE THE CARE WITH WHICH THE COMMUNITY HAS UNDERTAKEN TO PLAN ITS LAND USE DEVELOPMENT:

The purpose of the development is the improvement of this portion of the riverfront.

PLEASE STATETHE IMPACT THAT SUCH RECLASSIFICATION WILL HAVE UPON TRAFFICAND TRAFFICCONDITIONS ON SAID ROUTES; THEEFFECT, IF ANY, SUCH RECLASSIFICATION
AND/OR ANNEXATION WOULD HAVE UPON EXISTING ACCESSES TO SAID ROUTES; AND THE IMPACT OF ADDITIONAL ACCESSES AS REQUESTED BY THE PETITIONER UPON
TRAFFIC AND TRAFFIC CONDITIONS AND FLOW ON SAID ROUTES (ORD. 1976-43, 11-4-1976):

NO IMPACT




Prae poineDve. APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

REZONING STANDARDS
PLEASE STATE THE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBLIC AS COMPARED TO THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED UPON THE INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY OWNER:

Better access to the river for the enjoyment of the community and the adjacent lots.

PLEASE STATE THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE ZONED PURPOSES:

The subject property is SUITABLE and meets all R-2 requirements.
(12,000 s.f,, 80' wide lot, 10" setbacks and 40' rear setback)

AGREEMENT

| VERIFY THAT ALL THE INFORMATION IN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. | UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT ALL REQUIREMENTS AND FEES AS
OUTLINED AS WELL AS ANY INCURRED ADMINISTRATIVE AND PLANNING CONSULTANT FEES WHICH MUST BE CURRENT BEFORE THIS PROJECT CAN PROCEED TO THE NEXT
SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETING.

| UNDERSTAND ALL OF THE INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THIS DOCUMENT AND UNDERSTAND THAT [F AN APPLICATION BECOMES DORMANT IT IS THROUGH MY OWN FAULT
AND | MUST THEREFORE FOLLOW THE REQUIREMENTS OUTLINED ABOVE.

PETITIONER SIGNATURE DATE

OWNER HEREBY AUTHORIZESTHE PETITIONERTO PURSUETHE APPROPRIATE ENTITLEMENTS ONTHE PROPERTY.

i et

YOHANA M. FLORES
AL

THIS APPLICATION MUST BE
NOTARIZED PLEASE NOTARIZE HERE:

P - |




S i Pt i APPLICANT DEPOSIT ACCOUNT/

651 Prairie Pointe Drive

Yorkville, Illinois, 60560 ACKN OWLEDGMENT OF FI NANCIAL

Telephone: 630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575 RESPONSIBILITY

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

PROJECT NUMBER: FUND ACCOUNT PROPERTY ADDRESS:

NUMBER: 102 Worsley St.

PETITIONER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FUND:

Itis the policy of the United City of Yorkville to require any petitioner seeking approval on a project or entitlement request to establish a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund
to cover all actual expenses occurred as a result of processing such applications and requests. Typical requests requiring the establishment of a Petitioner Deposit Account
Fund include, but are not limited to, plan review of development approvals/engineering permits. Deposit account funds may also be used to cover costs for services related
to legal fees, engineering and other plan reviews, processing of other governmental applications, recording fees and other outside coordination and consulting fees. Each
fund account is established with an initial deposit based upon the estimated cost for services provided in the INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION. This initial
deposit is drawn against to pay for these services related to the project or request. Periodically throughout the project review/approval process, the Financially Respansible
Party will receive an invoice reflecting the charges made against the account. At any time the balance of the fund account fall below ten percent (10%) of the original deposit
amount, the Financially Responsible Party will receive an invoice requesting additional funds equal to one-hundred percent (100%) of the initial deposit if subsequent
reviews/fees related to the project are required. In the event that a deposit account is notimmediately replenished, review by the administrative staff, consultants, boards and
commissions may be suspended until the account s fully replenished. If additional funds remain in the depasit account at the completion of the project, the city will refund
the balance to the Financially Responsible Party. A written request must be submitted by the Financially Responsible Party to the city by the 15th of the month in order for
the refund check to be processed and distributed by the 15th of the following month. All refund checks will be made payable to the Financially Responsible Party and mailed
to the address provided when the account was established.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

NAME: Steve Holland COMPANY:

MAILING ADDRESS: 819 Columbus Dr.

CITY, STATE, ZIP: Oswego, IL 60543 TELEPHONE: 847-489-5713

EMAIL: steve.holland@beachfordogs.com FAX:

FINANCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY:

| acknowledge and understand that as the Financially Responsible Party, expenses may exceed the estimated initial deposit and, when requested by the United City of
Yorkville, | will provide additional funds to maintain the required account balance. Further, the sale or other disposition of the property does not relieve the individual or
Company/Corporation of their obligation to maintain a positive balance in the fund account, unless the United City of Yorkville approves a Change of Responsible Party and
transfer of funds. Should the account go into defiit, all City wark may stop until the requested replenishment deposit is received.

Steve Holland Owner

PRINT NAME TITLE
&g-Z-2¢

SIGMATU DATE '

*The name of the individual and the person who signs this declaration must be the same. If a corporation is listed, a corporate officer must sign the declaration (President, Vice-
President, Chairman, Secretary or Treasurer)

INITIAL ENGINEERING/LEGAL DEPOSIT TOTALS

ENGINEERING DEPQSITS: LEGAL DEPOSITS:

Up to one (1) acre $5,000 Less than two (2) acres $1,000
Over one (1) acre, but less than ten (10) acres $10,000 Over two (2) acres, but less than ten (10) acres $2,500
Over ten (10) acres, but less than forty (40) acres $15,000 QOver ten (10) acres 45,000
Over forty (40) acres, but less than one hundred (100) $20,000

In excess of one hundred (100.00) acres $25,000




CERTIFIED MAILING

AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
COUNTY OF KENDALL )
I[/We, _ Steve Holland , petitioner, being first duly sworn, do hereby state

under oath that to the best of my knowledge the attached list is a true, correct and complete list
of all permanent parcel numbers, and names and addresses of owners, of all lots and parts
of lots located within 500 feet (exclusively of any public streets and alleys) of the property
legally described on the attached application for annexation, rezoning, special use permit,
planned unit development, variation, or other zoning amendment. [ further state that said list
was obtained from the current tax rolls of the Kendall County Treasurer’s Office. 1 further
state that | mailed by U.S. Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, a copy of the Public
Notice of Public Hearing before the United City of Yorkville Planning and Zoning
Commission for the Public Hearing held on Wednesday, , at the United City

of City Council Chambers, Yorkville, [llinois. The notice was mailed to the attached list of all

of the permanent parcel numbers and names and addresses of owners at the U.S. Post office on

-2 L 20 2] .
AY
W
Signature of Petitﬁﬁar(s)

P NN W e
YOHANA M, FLORES 3
OFFICIAL BEAL

4 Notary Public - State of linia
( m ' — ¢ My Commission Expires Oct 26, 2028
ol W N g P R TR -

Not@} Public

Subscribed and sworn to before me this

gmp day of prg?(” , 20 02('{

e




United City of Yorkville
APPLICATION FOR

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560

o B PUBLIC HEARING SIGN

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

PERMIT NUMBER: DATE/TIME RECEIVED:

SITEADDRESS: 102 Worsley St PARCEL NUMBER:

SUBDIVISION: LOT/UNIT:

APPLICANT INFORMATION

NAME: Steve Holland TELEPHONE: ® HOME O BUSINESS 847-489-5713
ADDRESS: 819 Columbus Dr. E-MAIL: @ HOME O BUSINESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP. Oswego, IL 60543 FAX:

SIGN INFORMATION

DATE OF PICK UP: NUMBER OF SIGNS:

DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING: SIGN RETURN DATE:

The undersigned hereby states that they have acquired Public Hearing Signs from the United City of Yorkville's Community
Development Department and agrees to return said sign/s to Yorkville City Hall, 651 Prairie Pointe Drive, Yorkville,
lllincis, immediately following the date of the public hearing.

Petitioner or Representative agrees to pay to the United City of Yorkville a deposit of $50 for each sign. The deposit will be
returned to the petitioner when the public hearing sign/s have been returned to the City.

Petitioner or Representative further agrees to pay to the United City of Yorkville the full amount of the purchase price for
each sign not returned to the United City of Yorkville within seven (7) days after the date of the public hearing.

=24 ( -2 2

SIGRATORE/AUTHORIZEITRGENT DATE

DATE RETURNED:

RECEIVED BY: Pzt




EE25 Prinepoime e APPLICATION FOR

Mo Yorkwille. inois, 50560

,: ) Telephone. 630-553-4350 R E zo N l N G

bas: 0305593 /575
Website www.yorkville d.us

REZONING STANDARDS |
PLEASE STATE THE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBL I AS COMEARFD T0 THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED UPON THE INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY OWNER

| PLEASE STATE THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE ZONED PURFOSFS:

1 AGREEMENT

{ VERIFY THAT ALL THE INFORMATION IN THIS APPLICATION 1S TRUE 1O THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE | UNDERSTAN AKD ACCEPT ALL REQUISEMENTS AND FEES A5 |
OUTLINED ASWELL AS ANY INCURRED ADMINISTRATIVE AND PLANNING CONSULTANT FEES WHICH MUST BE CURRENT BEFORE THIS PROJECT CAN PROCEED 10 THE NEX!
| SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETING

|
| FUNDERSTAND ALL OF THE INFORMATION PRESEHTED INTHIS DOCUMENT AND UNDERSTAND THAY 1 AN APPLICATION BECOMES DORMANT IT 15 TRROUGH MY OWE FAULT
AND I MUST THEREFORE FOLLOW THE REQUIREMENTS OUT.INED ABOVF

PETITIONER SIGNAT URL DATE

Gi¥N:RHEREBY ALTHUAIZES 4t PHILTIONERTOPURSUE THE APPROPHIATE e84 LTLEMENTSONTHEP (PERTY !, the Manager of the LL!* that is the i
Kecord Owner of the Sun.ect Reatl Property hereby congits to the Anplicant proceeding with His Zoning

L/u /2004

DAl |

Subscribed and sworn o belfuic te. |

1ZE HERE: this 41 day of Jyng. 2024
’; ﬁj@ M,

"OFFICIAL SEAL"

' COLLEEN T HANSON

 NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
COMMISSION NO. 979188

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 10/6/2027

THIS APPLICATION MUS
NOTARIZED PLEASE




PLAT OF SURVEY =T A

LOT ¢ IN BLOCK 2 OF WORSLEY'S ADD!TION TO THE VILLAGE OF BRISTOL, IN THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 37 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
IN THE VILLAGE OF BRISTOL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

COMMON ADDRESS: 102 WORSLEY STREET
YORKVILLE, IL

PIN: 02--33—129—004
LOT AREA=11,969 S.F.
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SCALE: 17 = 20’
STATE OF ILLINOIS
FOX R | V E R COUN'P(OFWILJ_% s
KDC CONSULTANTS INC., As ILLINOIS LICENSED
\!:{REOFESIONAL LAND SURVEYORS, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE =z KDC CONSULTANTS INC.
HAVE SURYEYED THE PROPERTY DECRIBED IN THE CAPTION WWW.KDCCONSULTANTSINC.COM
TO THE PLAT HEREON DRAWN AND THIS PROFESSIONAL 16144 S. BELL ROAD
ARE LEGAL DEED. D REPORT A‘« DISCREPANCY SERVICE CONFORMS TO THE CURREN'!' \LuNOIS MINIMU HOMER GLEN, ILLINOIS 60491
EDUTELY. A TILE ot e FOR USE STANDARDS FOR A BOUNDARY S (708) BA5—0345  FAX: 845—0546
e i sigens ket e bt e
FOOT \TURI
= wmcnnugs”gcnonos%mm THS P PLAT, E‘gf%ﬁu DOES NG Nt stugf FAHRENHEIT, DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON BUILDINGS ARE TO THE PREPARED FOR:
ATHORMES MUST EaﬁTsooNSULTm REGARDING ANY RESTRCTIONS. QursiDe OF BELD';M or _ MARCH 5021 INTEGRITY INVESTMENT
T0 BASE) SURVEYED _2_ __MARCH !
m IMENSIONS FROM PLAT. NO TH
SH% S MFoRMTOR SO WOt THE sieNeD THIS _4 DAY oF AUG.  z01,
|ss10N OF KOG CONSLILW’S gﬁ THIS PLAT IS PROJECT PAGE
R O T T o EhETeeD, SEAL ARe at: uepise ExruTon 21-02-024 1 "o 1
. . PROFESSIONAL ILLINOIS LAND SURVEYOR No. 3184 11-30-2022




RESIDENTIAL GENERAL NOTES

2021 ENERGY CODE NOTES

SECTION 0100 GENERAL

1.

9.

10.

1.

MEANS AND METHODS AND SAFETY OF WORK: THE ARCHITECT SHALL NOT CONTROL OR
SPECIFY ANY MEANS OR METHODS OF ANY WORK PERFORMED BY THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR OR ANY SUBCONTRACTOR. ALL ISSUES OF JOBSITE SAFETY SHALL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR, THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OR THE
OWNER IF THE OWNER IS ACTING AS GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR CONSTRUCTION  MANAGER.

INSURANCE: ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM OF ONE MILLION DOLLARS OF
INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR PROPERTY AND PERSONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK AND TRANSPORTATION TO AND FROM THE JOBSITE. ALL
CONTRACTORS EMPLOYING OTHERS SHALL HAVE WORKMAN'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE AS
REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL SUPPLY THE OWNER WITH
CURRENT CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE THAT NAME THE OWNER AND THE ARCHITECT AS
"ALSO INSURED”. SUBMITTAL OF A BID SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS EVIDENCE THAT THE
CONTRACTOR HAS SUCH INSURANCE OR WILL PROVIDE SUCH INSURANCE. NOT SUB—
MITTING SUCH CERTIFICATES SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE WAIVING OF CONTRACTOR'S
REQUIREMENT TO CARRY INSURANCE THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE JOB.
AGREES THAT NON-SUBMITTAL OF AN INSURANCE CERTIFICATE IS GROUNDS FOR
WITHHOLDING PAYMENT BY OWNER UNTIL CERTIFICATE IS FILED WITH THE OWNER.

ERRORS AND CONFLICTS ON THE DRAWINGS: THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR CONST.
MANAGER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CHECKING AND VERIFYING ALL DIMENSIONS ON THE
DESIGN DRAWINGS AND ANY SHOP DRAWINGS. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING AND CHECKING THE
LAYOUT AND CONSTRUCTION OF ALL SUBCONTRACTORS, AND HIS OWN WORK. THE
ARCHITECT SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR CORRECTIVE WORK OR REMOVAL OF RESULTING
FROM ERRORS OR CONFLICTS ON THE DESIGN DRAWINGS IF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER FAILS TO CHECK THE DRAWINGS OR THE LAYOUT FOR
CONFORMANCE WITH THE OVERALL DESIGN CONCEPT. SUBCONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE
FOR VERIFYING THAT ANY EQUIPMENT OR FIXTURES SPECIFIED BY MODEL NUMBER ETC. IS
THE APPROPRIATE MODEL NUMBER, WITH THE APPROPRIATE FITTINGS, ATTACHMENTS, TRIMS,
ETC. FOR THE TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION INTO WHICH THE EQUIPMENT, DEVICE OR FIXTURE IS
TO BE INSTALLED. THE ARCHITECT ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR CORRECTION OR
REPLACEMENT OR RESTOCKING FEES FOR MATERIALS ORDERED BY ANY CONTRACTOR OR
SUBCONTRACTOR WHO DOES NOT VERITY MODEL NUMBERS AND CONTEXT OF THE
INSTALLATION.

GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE AND FULLY INFORM HIMSELF OF ALL
EXISTING CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS ~ AFFECTING THE WORK. ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE
VERIFIED IN THE FIELD.

DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS, DIMENSIONS GOVERN. CONTACT ARCHITECT FOR ANY
CLARIFICATIONS

ALL WORK TO BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL STATE AND LOCAL CODES WHICH HAVE
AUTHORITY OVER THIS PROJECT.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE AND PAY FOR ALL PERMITS,
NECESSARY AND INCIDENTAL FOR HIS INSTALLATION.

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL OF ALL TOOLS, DEBRIS
AND GENERAL CLEAN-UP

GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO UNCONDITIONALLY GUARANTEE ALL WORK AND MATERIALS FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE YEAR AFTER ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK AND MATERIALS.

THE G.C. SHALL BUILD THE BUILDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MINIMUM STANDARDS OF
THE INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE AND ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES

G.C. TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL OSHA STANDARDS

BIDDER

LICENSES AND INSPECTIONS

SECTION 0200 SITE

1.

4.

5.

EXCAVATION:  UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, ASSUMED BEARING CAPACITY FOR FOUNDATION
DESIGN IS 3000 PSF. NOTIFY ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY IF PROPER BEARING IS NOT
EVIDENT. PROVIDE SOILS REPORT W/ FOOTING P.P. IF APPLIES

SITE CLEARING: DO NOT REMOVE ANY TREES OR VEGETATION OUTSIDE OF THE IMMEDIATE
AREA OF THE HOUSE. OBTAIN OWNERS WRITTEN PERMISSION BEFORE REMOVING ANY TREE
OVER 2" DIAMETER. STOCKPILE TOPSOIL AND REAPPLY TO FINISH GRADE AROUND HOUSE.
FINISH GRADE SHALL BE +/- 1" OF GRADES SHOWN ON DRAWING. IF NO GRADES ARE
INDICATED, GRADE FOR PROPER DRAINAGE AWAY FROM AND AROUND THE HOUSE. MAINTAIN
GRADE MIN. 8" BELOW TOP OF FOUNDATION.

AREAS NOTED "UNEXCAVATED” AND ALL AREAS BELOW CONCRETE SLABS SHALL HAVE
UNSUITABLE MATERIALS REMOVED AND BE PROPERLY COMPACTED BEFORE GRANULAR FILL IS
PLACED AND COMPACTED

CALL "J.U.LLE” 1-800-892-0123 OR "DIGGER" 1-312-744-7000 AT LEAST 48 HOURS
BEFORE YOU DIG. (TWO WORKING DAYS)

COMPLIANCE WITH UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD FACILITIES REGULATIONS MUST BE DONE
BEFORE WORK BEGINS

SECTION 0300 CONCRETE

1.

3.

4,

5.

4" DRAIN TILE: 4" PERFORATED PVC FOUNDATION DRAIN TILE ALL AROUND THE FOUNDATION
CONNECTED TO SUMP PUMP. PROVIDE 2" MIN. WASHED STONE BED AND 12" MIN. STONE
COVER. PROVIDE 4" DIA. VERTICAL PIPE FROM EACH WINDOW WELL DOWN TO DRAIN TILE,
FILL W/ STONE. COVER DRAIN TILE WITH APPROVED FILTER MEMBRANE MATERIAL (DRAIN
TILE IN A SOCK TYPE)

CONCRETE:  USE 3000 PSI (AT 28 DAYS) COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH. TRANSIT MIXED
CONCRETE: ASTM C—90 UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. USE AIR ENTRAINING ADMIXTURE FOR
ALL FLATWORK EXPOSED TO WEATHER. PITCH ALL EXTERIOR CONCRETE SLABS AND WALKS

1/8" AWAY FROM THE HOUSE.

ALL FOOTINGS TO BEAR NO LESS THAN 42" BELOW FINISHED GRADE ON UNDISTURBED,
INORGANIC SOIL, WITH AN ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY OF 3,000 P.S.F.

ESCAPE LADDER IS REQUIRED FOR ESCAPE WINDOW. PROVIDE WINDOW WELL COVER ON ALL
WINDOW WELLS.

SEALED SUMP PUMP PIT REQUIRED FOR PASSIVE RADON SYSTEM

SECTION 0400 MASONRY

1.

MASONRY:  USE GALVANIZED CORRUGATED BRICK TIES ATTACHED TO SHEATHING AND STUDS
AT 16" O.C. HORIZ (NOT TO EXCEED 24") & 16" VERT. USE TYPE "M" MORTAR, NATURAL
COLOR UNLESS INDICATED OTHERWISE ON THE DRAWING. PROVIDE COTTON ROPE LOOPED
BETWEEN EACH TWO ADJACENT WEEP HOLES. LOCATE WEEP HOLES 24" 0.C. USE PVC
BASE FLASHING AND PVC FLASHING AT WINDOW SILLS AND HEADS

SECTION 0500 METALS

1.

ANCHOR BOLT — ALL WOOD PLATES ANCHORED TO CONCRETE TO HAVE 1/2"x10” HOOKED
BOLTS WITH 7" EMBEDMENT SPACED MAX. 6'-0" 0.C. AND WITHIN 12" OF ALL CORNERS (
MIN, 2 PER PLATE)

ALLY COLUMNS SPECIFIED ARE OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF STANDARD WEIGHT, UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE. THEY SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH 6°x10"x3/4” BASE PLATES, AND
6°x10"x1/2” CAP PLATES, UNLESS NOTED. BASE PLATES AND CAP PLATES SHALL BE
SECURED DIRECTLY TO FOUNDATIONS AND STEEL BEAMS WITH 2—1/2" DIAMETER BOLTS
(MINIMUM)

SECTION 0600 WOOD

1.

> N>

— ©

FRAMING LUMBER SPECIES AND BASE VALUES SHALL BE AS NOTED BELOW, U.N.O. RAFTERS,
JOISTS, HEADERS AND BEAMS— #2 DOMESTIC HEM—FIR OR BETTER Fb= 850 PSI, Fv= 75
PSI, E= 1,300,000 PSI STUDS- 10'-0" AND LESS IN HEIGHT— STUD GRADE S—P-F OR
BETTER Fb= 575 PSI, Fc= 600 PSI, E= 1,000,000 PSI GREATER THAN 10'-0" IN HEIGHT-
#2 S-P-F OR BETTER Fb= 750 PSI, Fc= 975 PSI, E= 1,100,000 PSI POSTS AND

TREATED LUMBER- #2 SOUTHERN PINE OR BETTER Fv= PER NDS TABLES, Fv= 90 PS|,
Fc= PER NDS TABLES, E= 1,600,000 PSI LAMINATED STRUCTURAL WOOD BEAMS Fv= 2,400

PSI, Fv= 165 PSI, E=1,800,000 ALL FRAMING MEMBERS DESIGNATED "M.L." OR
"MICROLLAM” SHALL BE L9E MICROLLAM LVL BY TRUS JOIST MacMILLAN OR BETTER Fv=
2,600 PSI, Fv= 285 PSI, E= 1,900,000

DOUBLE FRAMING MEMBERS (MINIMUM) AROUND OPENINGS IN ROOFS, FLOORS, CEILINGS,
UNDER BATHTUBS AND SHOWERS AND UNDER PARTITIONS PARALLEL TO JOISTS.

ALL HEADERS TO BE 2-2"x12" UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

MINIMUM 2 CRIPPLE STUDS BELOW ALL OPENINGS 6'-0" AND WIDER

DESIGN LOADS AS FOLLOWS: CEILING/ATTIC DESIGN LIVE LOAD = 20 PSF

ROOF DESIGN LIVE LOAD = 30 PSF WALL WIND LOAD, 0—20 FT. = 20 PSF
FLOOR DESIGN LIVE LOAD = 40 PSF WALL WIND LOAD, 21-29 FT. = 25 PSF

SLEEPING AREAS LIVE LOAD = 30 PSF WAL WIND LOAD, +30 FT. = 30 PSF
ALL WALL TOP PLATES ARE TO BE LAPPED AT ALL CORNERS

PROVIDE METAL JOISTS HANGERS AT STAIRS AND ALL FLUSH FRAMED MEMBERS
FIRESTOP SOFFITS AND TOP AND BOTTOM OF STAIR STRINGERS

PROVIDE MINIMUM 2" CLEARANCE BETWEEN FRAMING MEMBERS AND CHIMNEY
FIRESTOP CAVITIES BETWEEN CHIMNEY AND FRAMING LUMBER WITH NON-COMBUSTIBLE FILL

1

1

1.

2.

LUMBER: USE GRADED S4S LUMBER. ALL LUMBER SHALL BE KILN DRIED #2 OR BETTER.
USE FHA APPROVED FRAMING DETAILS. USE MIN. TWO-2x12 HEADERS AT ALL OPENINGS UP

TO 72" UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. USE HIP & VALLEY RAFTER NOM. 2" LARGER THAN

RAFTER. USE 11 1/2" MICROLLAM VALLEY FOR 2X12 RAFTERS. USE SAME DEPTH
MICROLLAM HIP & VALLEY FOR CATHEDRAL CEILINGS PROVIDE CROSS BRIDGING NOT TO

EXCEED 8'-0" IN ALL FLOOR FRAMED W/ DIMENSIONAL LUMBER BRIDGING IS NOT
REQUIRED FOR TJlI's SEE MANUFACTURER’S INSTRUCTIONS FOR CUTTING AND REINFORCING.
PLYWOOD: ALL PLYWOOD SHALL BE APA RATED-SEE PLAN FOR THICKNESS WAFERBOARD:

ALL WAFER BOARD SHALL BE ORIENTED STRAND, NOT RANDOM. ROOF SHEATHING SHALL BE
SPACED FOR EXPANSION WHEN INSTALLED PER APA STANDARDS TYPE 1.

13. EXTERIOR WALL FRAMING TO BE FULLY BRACED WITH 1/2" 0.S.B SHEATHING
SECTION 0700 THERMAL
1.

GLAZING: ALL GLAZING WITHIN 24" OF A DOOR (IN CLOSED POSITION), OR WITHIN A DOOR,

OR WITHIN 18" FROM FINISHED FLOOR OR WALKING SURFACE (WITHIN 36" OF GLAZING),
SHALL BE TEMPERED GLASS OR OTHER APPROVED SAFETY GLAZING. MEET 2018 IRC
R-308.4

ALL GLAZING TO FOLLOW 2018 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE AS REQUIRED

PROVIDE TEMPERED SAFETY GLASS, AS NOTED, AT ALL WINDOWS OVER TUBS, AND AT
WINDOWS WITH SILLS 18" OR LESS ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR

EXPOSED KRAFT PAPER OF INSULATION IN BASEMENT MUST HAVE A FLAME SPREAD OF 25
OR LESS

FLASH OVER EXTERIOR DOORS AND WINDOWS, UNDER SILLS AND AT JUNCTIONS WITH
DISSIMILAR MATERIALS

FLASHING AT TOP OF FOUNDATION TO CARRY 16" UP WALL

ALL ROOFING COUNTER FLASHING MUST BE BENT AND CUT INTO THE BRICK MORTAR
JOINTS

BEDROOM WINDOW EGRESS — WINDOW MANUFACTURER TO SUPPLY WINDOWS FOR SLEEPING
ROOMS WHICH MEET THE IRC 2018 CODE EMERGENCY EGRESS REQUIREMENTS. MIN.
OPENABLE AREA OF 5.7 SQ. FT. MIN. OPENABLE CLEAR HEIGHT OF 2'-0" AND A MIN.
CLEAR WIDTH OF 1'-8" AND NOT MORE THAN 3'-4" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR AND NO LESS
THAN 24" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR - 2018 IRC

SECTION 0800 DOORS
1.

U.N.O., DOORS SHALL BE CENTERED IN OPENINGS OR MIN. 4" FROM FACE OF ADJACENT
WALLS.

SECTION 0900 FINISHES
1.

INTERIOR TRIM: FILL ALL VOIDS IN FRAMING OR AROUND PENETRATIONS IN CONSTRUCTION
WITH EXPANDING FOAM. USE POLYSULFIDE, URETHANE, OR RUBBER SILICONE CAULK AT ALL
OPENINGS, JOINTS, ETC. AS REQUIRED TO MAKE CONSTRUCTION WEATHER TIGHT.

FOR FLOOR CEILING HEIGHT REFER TO ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS.

PROVIDE WATER RESISTIVE DRYWALL IN ALL BATHS, SHOWERS AND AREAS SUBJECT TO
MOISTURE.

SECTION 1000 SPECIALTIES

1.

STAIR NOTES — ALL STAIRS SHALL HAVE A MAX. RISE OF 7 3/4”, A MIN. TREAD OF 10"

CLEAR OF TREAD ABOVE, MINIMUM 1 1/8" NOSING, MINIMUM WIDTH OF 36" AND A CONT.
CLEAR HEADROOM MEASURED VERTICALLY FROM FRONT NOSING OF TREAD TO A LINE

PARALLEL WITH A STAR RUN MIN. OF 6'-10"

HAND AND GUARD RAILS

A. ALL REQUIRED HANDRAILS SHALL BE CONTINUOUS THE FULL LENGTH OF THE STAIRS
AND ENDS SHALL BE RETURNED OR SHALL TERMINATE IN NEWEL POSTS OR SAFETY
TERMINALS.

B. HANDRAILS ADJACENT TO A WALL SHALL HAVE A SPACE NOT LESS THAN 1 1/2”
BETWEEN THE WALL AND THE HANDRAIL

C. HANDRAILS SHALL HAVE EITHER A CIRCULAR CROSS SECTION WITH A DIAMETER OF 1
1/4” 70 2” OR A NON—CIRCULAR CROSS WITH A PERIMETER DIMENSION OF AT LEAST 4”
BUT NOT MORE THAN 6 1/4” AND A LARGEST CROSS SECTION DIMENSION NOT EXCEEDING
2.1/4

D. STAR NOSINGS SHALL BE NO LESS THAN 1 1/8”

E. OPEN SIDES OF STAIRS WITH A TOTAL RISE OF MORE THAN 30" ABOVE THE FLOOR
SHALL HAVE GUARDRAILS NOT LESS THAN 34" IN HEIGHT MEASURED VERTICALLY FROM
THE NOSING OF THE TREADS.

F. GUARDRAILS ON OPEN SIDES OF STAIRWAYS OR RAISED FLOOR AREAS SHALL HAVE
INTERMEDIATE RAILS OR ORNAMENTAL CLOSURES WHICH DO NOT ALLOW PASSAGE OF AN
OBJECT 4" OR MORE IN DIAMETER.

G. THE TRIANGULAR OPENINGS FORMED BY RISER, TREAD AND BOTTOM RAIL OF A
GUARDRAIL AT THE OPEN SIDE OF A STAIRWAY WILL NOT ALLOW AN OBUECT THE SIZE OF
A 4" SPHERE PASS THROUGH - 36" MIN. HEIGHT

ALL GUARDRAILS (VERANDA, BALCONY, DECK, AND INTERIOR STAIRWELLS, ETC.) SHALL HAVE
BALUSTERS WHICH ARE SPACED SO THAT A 4” DIAMETER SPHERE CANNOT PASS—THRU.

SECTION 1500 MECHANICAL & PLUMBING

1.

PLUMBING: USE HARD COPPER (TYPE "L” ABOVE GRADE OR "K" BELOW GRADE FOR ALL
WATER SUPPLY. USE 4" SCHEDULE 40 CAST IRON BELOW GRADE FOR WASTE. USE
SCHED. 40 PVC WASTE PIPING ABOVE GRADE INSIDE BUILDING AND WITH PURPLE PRIMER
ONLY. PROPERLY VENT ALL WASTE LINES, DO NOT USE WET VENTS. PROVIDE HOSE BIBBS
WHERE SHOWN OR WHERE DIRECTED BY THE OWNER. PROVIDE SUMP, PUMP AND METAL
LID FOR FOUNDATION DRAIN. PROVIDE HIGH WATER ALARM IN SUMP. PROVIDE INSTALLATION
OF BATTERY BACK—UP FOR SUMP PUMP IF OWNER SUPPLIES EQUIPMENT. USE NON-LEAD
SOLDER. CONNECT BASEMENT FLOOR DRAIN TO SANITARY SEWER.

VENT DRYERS AND EXHAUST FANS DIRECTLY TO EXTERIOR VIA RIGID METAL DUCT WITHOUT
SHEET SCREWS

PROVIDE ANTI-SCAD VALVES IN ALL TUBS, SHOWERS AND TUB/SHOWER COMBINATIONS.
SET TO DELIVER MAX. 115 DEGREES. DO NOT US HOT WATER HEATER TO SET VALVES.
PROVIDE ACCESS PANEL FOR WHIRLPOOL MOTOR REPAIRS, 18" H x 24" W.

PROVIDE GRAY BOX OR 2" STAND PIPE FOR WATER DISCHARGE AND FLOOR DRAIN IN
LAUNDRY AREA.

PROVIDE FULL 2" WASTE OPENINGS FOR KITCHEN SINK W/ ACCESSIBLE FULL 2" OPENING
FOR CLEAN OUT UNDER SINK.

ALL FLOOR DRAINS MUST BE TRAPPED AND VENTED. SEND TO EJECTOR PIT WHEN BELOW
GRADE, SEND TO SEWER WHEN ABOVE GRADE.

SUMP PIT MUST BE 2" ABOVE THE FINISHED FLOOR.

COMBUSTION AIR FROM OUTDOOR SHALL BE REQUIRED IF THE SPACE WHERE COMBUSTION
APPLIANCES ARE LOCATED IS ENCLOSED OR OF UNUSUALLY TIGHT CONSTRUCTION

SECTION 1600 ELECTRICAL — 2008 NEC / 2018 IRC

1.

7.

ELECTRICAL: 200 AMP 120/240 VOLT SERVICE (VERIFY). USE CONDUIT AND CONDUCTORS
SIZED PER CURRENT NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, PROVIDE
SWITCHED CIRCUIT IN 1/2 OF EACH OUTLET IN EVERY BEDROOM. PROVIDE JUNCTION BOX
AND/OR OUTLET FOR GARBAGE DISPOSAL DISHWASHER, OVERHEAD DOOR OPERATOR(S),
CEILING FANS, ETC. PROVIDE GROUND FAULT INTERRUPTING CIRCUITS AT ALL QUTLETS
WITHIN BATHROOMS KITCHEN, BASEMENT ETC. SINKS. ALSO G.F.I. AT EXTERIOR & GARAGE
OUTLETS. PER MUNICIPAL CODE-EXTERIOR MAIN DISCONNECT/OVER CURRENT DEVICE

FOLLOW THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE— GROUND FAULT INTERRUPT = ALL OUTLETS
USE SINGLE DEDICATED OUTLETS FOR SUMP, EJECTOR AND FURNACE.

NO MORE THAN 12'-0" PERMITTED BETWEEN ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLES AND THEY SHALL BE
LOCATED NOT MORE THAN 6'-0" FROM AN OPENING IN A WALL

DUAL-VOLTAGE U.L.A. SMOKE DETECTORS WIRED IN SERIES WITH BATTERY BACKUP ON EACH

LEVEL AND IN EACH BEDROOM & CO2 DETECTORS @ 15'-0" FROM ALL BEDROOMS
LIGHT FIXTURES IN ALL CLOSETS

A. LOCATION—A FIXTURE IN A CLOSET SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE INSTALLED:

1. ON THE WALL ABOVE THE CLOSET DOOR, PROVIDED THE CLEARANCE BETWEEN THE
FIXTURE AND A STORAGE AREA WHERE COMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL MAY BE STORED WITHIN THE
CLOSET IS NOT LESS THAN 18" OR...

2. ON THE CEILING OVER AN AREA WHICH IS UNOBSTRUCTED TO THE FLOOR, MAINTAINING
AN 18" CLEARANCE HORIZONTALLY BETWEEN THE FIXTURE AND A STORAGE AREA WHERE
COMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL MAY BE STORED WITHIN THE CLOSET

a. FLUSH RECESSED FIXTURE WITH A SOLID LENS OR A CEILING FLUORESCENT FIXTURE
SHALL BE PERMITTED TO BE INSTALLED, PROVIDED THERE IS A 6" CLEARANCE,
HORIZONTALLY BETWEEN THE FIXTURE AND STORAGE AREA.

B. PENDANTS SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED IN CLOTHES CLOSETS.

CEILING LIGHT FIXTURES IN HABITABLE ROOMS SHALL HAVE FAN RATED BOXES

1.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

ATTIC ACCESS PANELS MUST BE INSULATED TO MATCH ATTIC AND MUST BE WEATHERSTRIPPED
(SECTION R402.2.4)

SECTION R402.4.1 AND TABLE R402.4.1.1

THE BUILDING THERMAL ENVELOP SHALL BE DURABLE SEALED TO LIMIT INFILTRATION. THE
SEALING METHODS BETWEEN DISSIMILAR MATERIALS SHALL ALLOW FOR DIFFERENTIAL EXPANSION
AND CONTRACTION. THE FOLLOWING SHALL BE CAULKED, GASKETED, WEATHERSTRIPPED OR
OTHERWISE SEALED WITH A AIR BARRIER MATERIAL SUITABLE FILM OR SOLID MATERIAL; AND
INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURES INSTRUCTIONS:

AR BARRIER AND THERMAL BARRIER

CEILING / ATTIC

WALLS

WINDOWS, SKYLIGHTS AND DOORS
RIM JOISTS

FLOOR (INCLUDING ABOVE GARAGE AND CANTILEVER FLOORS)
CRAWL SPACE WALLS

SHAFTS, PENETRATIONS

NARROW  CAVITIES

GARAGE SEPARATION

RECESSED LIGHTING

PLUMBING AND WIRING

SHOWER/TUB ON EXTERIOR WALL

ELECTRICAL / PHONE BOX ON EXTERIOR WALL
HVAC REGISTER BOOTS
FIREPLACE

NOTE: REFER TO TABLE R402.4.1.1. FOR THE INSTALLATION CRITERIA FOR THE ABOVE BUILDING
COMPONENTS

THE FIREPLACES SHALL HAVE GASKETED DOORS, TIGHT FITTING FLUE DAMPERS AND OUTDOOR
COMBUSTION AIR (SECTION R402.4.2)

WINDOWS AND SLIDING GLASS DOORS LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 0.3 CFM PER SQUARE FOOT
AIR LEAKAGE. SWING DOORS LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 0.5 CFM PER SQUARE FOOT. (SECTION
402.4.3)

RECESSED LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED IN BUILDING THERMAL ENVELOPE SHALL BE:
A. IC—RATED AND LABELED (SUITABLE FOR INSULATION CONTACT).

B. SEALED WITH A GASKET OR CAULK BETWEEN THE FIXTURE HOUSING AND CEILING. (SECTION
R402.4.4)

AT LEAST ONE THERMOSTAT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EACH SEPARATE HEATING AND COOLING
SYSTEM. AT LEAST ON THERMOSTAT SHALL BE PROGRAMMABLE. (SECTION R403.1.1)

IN AN UNCONDITIONED SPACE, SUPPLY DUCTS IN ATTICS SHALL BE INSULATED TO A MINIMUM
R—8. ALL OTHER DUCTS SHALL BE INSULATED TO A MIN. OF R—6 (SECTION R403.2.1)

ALL DUCTS, AIR HANDLERS, FILTER BOXES AND BUILDING CAVITIES USED AS DUCTS SHALL BE
SEALED AT ALL JOINTS AND SEAMS. DUCT TAPE OR ANY OTHER UNLISTED TAPE IS NOT

PERMITTED. (SECTION R403.2.2)
BUILDING FRAMING CAVITIES SHALL NOT BE USED AS SUPPLY DUCTS. (SECTION R403.2.3.)

MECHANICAL SYSTEM PIPING CAPABLE OF CARRYING FLUIDS ABOVE 105 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT
SHALL BE INSULATED TO A MINIMUM OF R—3 (SECTION 403.3)

ALL CIRCULATING SERVICE HOT WATER PIPING SHALL BE INSULATED TO A MIN. OF R-3 WITH A
READY ACCESSIBLE MANUAL SWITCH THAT CAN TURN OFF THE HOT WATER CIRCULATING PUMP

WHEN THE SYSTEM IS NOT IN USE. (SECTION 403.4.1 AND 403.4.2)

OUTDOOR AIR INTAKES AND EXHAUSTS SHALL HAVE AUTOMATIC OR GRAVITY DAMPERS THAT
CLOSE WHEN THE VENTILATION SYSTEM IS NOT IN USE. (SECTION R403.5)

ALL PERMANENTLY INSTALLED LIGHT FIXTURES (EXCLUDING KITCHEN APPLIANCE LIGHTING
FIXTURES) SHALL BE HIGH EFFICIENCY LAMPS(SECTION R404.1)
SECTION R402.4.1.2 TESTING:

BUILDING SHALL BE TESTED AND VERIFIED AS HAVING AN AIR LEAKAGE RATE OF NOT
EXCEEDING 3 AIR CHANGES PER HOUR. TESTING SHALL BE CONDUCTED WITH A BLOWER DOOR
AT A PRESSURE OF 0.2 INCHES W.G. (50 PASCAL). WHERE REQUIRED BY THE CODE OFFICIAL,
TESTING SHALL BE CONDUCTED BY AN APPROVED THIRD PARTY.

ALL RECESSED LUMINAIRES SHALL BE IC—RATED, LABELED AS HAVING A LEAKAGE RATE OF NOT
MORE THAN 2.0 CFM@7/5 PA AND SEALED WITH A GASKET OR CAULK BETWEEN THE HOUSING
AND CEILING.C402.5.8 RECESSED LIGHTING

R406.3 ENERGY RATING INDEX (NUMBER VALUE BASED LINEAR SCALE SUCH THAT THE ER
REFERENCE DESIGN HAS AN INDEX VALUE OF 100 AND A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING THAT HAS NET
ZERO ANNUAL PURCHASED ENERGY HAS AN INDEX RATING OF 0. EACH INCREASE/DECREASE IN
INDEX VALUE SHALL REPRESENT A 1% CHANGE IN TOTAL ANNUAL ENERGY USE OF THE RATED
DESIGN RELATIVE TO THE ERI REFERENCE DESIGN) 100 X (REFERENCE BUILDING ANNUAL
ENERGY COST — DESIGN BUILDING ANNUAL ENERGY COST) REFERENCE BUILDING ANNUAL
ENERGY COST

R406.3.1 ERI REFERENCE DESIGN (ERI REFERENCE

PER SECTION R40222 OF THE 2021 IECC, INSULATION IN VAULTED CEILINGS MAY BE REDUCED

TO R-38 PROVIDED THAT THE AREA REDUCED INSULATION DOES NOT EXCEED 500 S.F. OR 20%
OF THE TOTAL INSULATED AREA WHICHEVER IS LESS
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PRESCRIPTIVE METHOD TO BE USED

2021 IECC— TABLE R402.1.2

INSULATION AND FENESTRATION REQUIREMENTS BY COMPONENT

CLMATE | FENESTRATION| SkYLIGHT | 6LAzeD FEN.| CEILNG | wD FRAME MASS WALL | FLOOR BSMNT WALL |SLAB R-VALUE |CRAWL SPACE

ZONE  |U-FACTOR | U-FACTOR |SHGC R-VALUE | WALL R-VALUE| R-VALUE | R-VALUE | R-VALUE  |& DEPTH WALL R-VALUE

5 AND 0.30 0.55 0.40 60 20424 OR 13/17 30 15CHOR 19 400 4 ¢ | 15C1 OR 19

MARINE 4| % : : T3 on OR OR 13+5C| : OR 13+5C]
0+20ci

a. R—values are minimums. U-factors and SHGC are maximums. When insulation is installed in a cavity that is less than the label or design thickness
of the insulation, the installed R—value of the insulation shall not be less than the R—value specified in the table.
b. The fenestration U-factor column excludes skylights. The SHGC column applies to all glazed fenestration. Exception: in Climate Zones O through 3,

Skylights shall be permitted to be excluded from glazed fenestration SHGC requirements provided that the SHGC

0.30.

for such skylights does not exceed

c. "5ci or 13" means R—5 continuous insulation (ci) on the interior or exterior surface of the wall or R—13 cavity insulation on the interior side of
the wall. "10ci or 13" means R—10 continuous insulation (ci) on the interior or exterior surface of the wall or R—13 cavity insulation on the interior

side of the wall.

"15¢i or 19 or 13 +5¢i” means R—15 continuos insulation (ci) on the interior or exterior surface of the wall; or R=19 cavity insulation on the interior
side of wall; or R=13 cavity insulation on the interior of the wall in addition to R—5 continuos insulation on the interior or exterior surface the wall.
d. R=5 shall be provided under the full slab area of heated slab in addition to the requgsired slab—edge insulaion R-value fo slabs. as indicated in
the table. the slabedge insulationfor heated slabshall not be requiered to extend bellow the slab.

e. There are no SHGC requirements in the Marine Zone.
f. Basement wall insulation is not required in warm—humid locations as defined by Figure R301.1 and Table R301.1.

g. The first value is cavity insulation; the second value is continuous insulation. Therefore, as an example, "13+5" means R—13 cavity insulation plus

R—-5 continuous insulation.

h. Mass walls shall be in accordance with section R402.2.5 The second R—value applies wherw more than half of the insulation is on the interior of

the mass wall.

i. A maximum U—factor of 0.32 shall apply in climate zones 3 through 8 to vertical fenestration products installed in buildings located either

1. above 4,000 feetin elevation, or

2. in windbome debris regions where protection of openings is required by section R301.2.1.2 of the International Residential Code.

DESIGN ELEMENTS

DESIGN CRITERIA

GROUND SNOW LOAD - 25

WIND SPEED - 107

TOPOGRAPHIC EFFECTS — NO

SPECIAL WIND REGION - NO

WINDBORNE DEBRIS ZONE — NO

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY — A

SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM WEATHERING — SEVERE
FROST LINE DEPTH — 42 INCHES BELOW GRADE
TERMITE — MODERATE TO HEAVY

WINTER DESIGN TEMPERATURE - MINUS 5 DEG F
ICE BARRIER UNDERLAYMENT REQUIRED - YES
FLOOD HAZARDS FEBRUARY 12, 1975

AR FREEZING INDEX —1000-2000

MEAN ANNUAL TEMP 45-50 F

FLOOR = 40# LL / 10# DL

WALL = 60f PLF OR ACTUAL LOAD
CEILING = 204 LL /10 DL

ROOF = 304 LL / 10 DL
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GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL FLOOR JOISTS SHALL BE #2 DOMESTIC HEM-FIR OR #2
CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER WITH BRIDGING U.N.O. ON

PLANS.

2. FOOTING SIZES REQ'D: 8" x 16" SUPPORTING FRAME 10" x 20"
SUPPORTING BRICK VENEER DESIGN SOIL BEARING CAPACITY =

3000 PSF

3. PROVIDE 1/2" OSB CORNER BRACING AND AT 20' INTERVALS
MAX - OSB BRACING TO FOLLOW R602.10.2.1 AND R602.10.2.2

4. FOUNDATION WALLS SHALL BE 10" THICK UNDER BRICK VENEER
AND 8" THICK UNDER FRAME CONSTRUCTION.

5. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES
6. DOUBLE ALL JOIST UNDER WHIRLPOOL

7. ALL FOOTINGS TO BEAR ON UNDISTURBED, NON-ORGANIC SOIL
CAPABLE OF CARRYING 3,000 PSF MINIMUM AND TO BE A MINIMUM
OF 42" BELOW GRADE

8. STRUCTURAL STEEL TO BE A.S.T.M. A-36 REINFORCING STEEL TO

BE GRADE 60

9. ALL GLAZING TO FOLLOW R308 OF THE 2018 IRC AS REQUIRED.
REQUIREMENTS PROVIDE SAFETY GLASS IN ALL DOORS,
SIDELIGHTS, WINDOWS WITH GLAZING WITHIN 18" OF THE FLOOR &
OVER 9 SQUARE FEET OF AREA, GLASS SHOWER ENCLOSURES,

AND WINDOWS AT
10.

TUB AREA

ANY WHIRLPOOL INSTALLATIONS ARE TO FOLLOW 2008 NEC

11. DRYER VENT SHALL BE MADE OF GALVANIZED SHEET METAL OR
ALUMINUM - VENT DRYERS AND EXHAUST FANS TO OUTSIDE

12.

THE HOUSE - SOLID CORE WITH CLOSERS

13.

A FIRE RATED DOOR IS REQUIRED BETWEEN THE GARAGE AND

CONTRACTORS TO OBTAIN AND FOLLOW THE INSTALLATION

DETAILS AND PROCEDURES FOR ALL MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS
AS CALLED FOR IN THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS THIS IS
TO INCLUDE LVL BEAMS, I-JOISTS, SHINGLES, SIDING, INSULATION,
WINDOWS, DOORS, APPLIANCES, ETC.

14.

WINDOW MANUFACTURER TO DESIGN AND PROVIDE NECESSARY

REINFORCING FOR WIND LOADS IN MULLIONS OF COMBINED

WINDOWS VERIFY
15.

LOAD REQUIREMENTS

HEARTH EXTENSION - MIN. 16" TO FRONT & 8" TO SIDE OF

FIREPLACE OPENING - IF OPENING IS 6 SQ. FT. OR GREATER 20" TO
FRONT AND 12" TO SIDES.

16.
17.

EMERGENCY EGRESS WINDOWS PER SEC R310 OF 2018 IRC
PROVIDE A (1) HOUR FIRE SEPARATION AT WALLS AND CEILINGS IN

GARAGE COMMON TO RESIDENCE - 5/8" TYPE "X" GYP. BD. AT
WALLS AND CEILING AND PROTECTING ALL STRUCTURAL AND

STEEL MEMBERS
18.

2018 IRC E3902.11 OR 2008 NEC ARTICLE 210.12

19.

ARC-FAULT INTERRUPTER DISCONNECT (AFCI) IS REQUIRED PER

ALL OUTLETS IN GARAGE, BATHROOMS, KITCHEN, EXTERIOR AND

BASEMENT TO BE GFI PROTECTED - OUTLETS AT FOR SUMP PUMP,
FURNACE AND EJECTOR PITS TO BE SINGLE DEDICATED OUTLETS -
SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

20.

ALL BEDROOMS SHALL HAVE AT LEAST ONE EGRESS WINDOW

WITH A MINIMUM NET CLEAR OPENING OF 5.7 SQ. FT., A MINIMUM
NET CLEAR OPENING HEIGHT DIMENSION OF 24", MINIMUM WIDTH
OF 20" AND A MAXIMUM SILL HEIGHT OF 44" ABOVE THE FINISHED

FLOOR.

PROVIDE WINDOW FALL PROTECTION AS PER R312 OF THE 2018 IRC

22.

INSTALL (1) 110V ELECTRIC FIRE AND SMOKE DETECTOR ON EACH

FLOOR. INCLUDING BASEMENT, AND EACH BEDROOM WIRED IN
SERIES FOR SIMULTANEOUS ACTION

23.

ALL FRAMING DRILLED FOR PLUMBING VENTS OR SIMILAR HOLES

SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2 x 6 STUDS IN LIEU OF 2 x 4 STUDS.

24.

ALL GUARDRAILS (VERANDA, BALCONY, DECK, AND INTERIOR

STAIRWELLS, ETC.) SHALL HAVE BALUSTERS WHICH ARE SPACED
SO THAT A 4" DIAMETER SPHERE CANNOT PASS-THRU.

25.

2018 IRC AS REQUIRED

WINDOW FALL PROTECTION: ALL WINDOWS TO FOLLOW 4312 OF HE

ROOF RAFTER SCHEDULE

MAX. SPAN MAX. SPAN
RAFTER SIZE RAFTER SPACING VAULTED CLG. NON-VAULTED
2x12 16" O.C. 19'-11" 211"
2x10 16" O.C. 17'-2" 18'-2"
2x10 12" O.C. 19'-10" 21'-0"
2x8 16" O.C. 14'-0" 14-11"

ALL RAFTERS SHALL BE MINIMUM SIZE AND SPACING PER
SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLANS - ALL
RAFTERS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR ( E = 1,200,000 MIN. )

# 2 CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR ( E = 1,400,000 MIN.) OR BETTER

CEILING JOIST SCHEDULE
JOIST SIZE JOIST SPACING MAX. SPAN

2x4 AT 16" O.C. 6'-6"
2x6 AT 16" O.C. 12'0"
2x8 AT 16" O.C. 160"
2x8 AT 12" O.C. 18'6"
2x10 AT 16" O.C. 19"-7"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 227"
2x12 AT 16" O.C. 228"
2x12 AT 12" O.C. 26'-3"

CEILING JOISTS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR , # 2 CANADIAN
SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER. ALL JOISTS SHALL BE MINIMUM

SIZE AND SPACING PER SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED OTHERWISE ON

PLANS.

MAXIMUM SPAN
JOIST & SPACING NON-SLEEPING SLEEPING
ROOMS ROOMS
L /360 40# LL - 10# DL 30# LL - 10# DL
2x 8 AT 12" O.C. 132" 14'-6"
2 x 8 AT 16" O.C. 120" 132"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 16'-10" 18'-6"
2x 10 AT 16" O.C. 152" 16'-10"
2x 10 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 159" 17'-5"
2x 12 AT 12" O.C. 20"-4" 22'-6"
2x 12 AT 16" O.C. 177" 19'-8"
2x12 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 191" 21'-4"
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E

AGAMA DESIGNS
architecture

664 W Veterans Pkwy, Suite A
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Phone: 630-381-9019
E-mail: alberto@agamadesigns.com

THESE DRAWINGS, INCLUDING ALL DESIGNS, DETAILS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION, ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY
AND COPYRIGHT OF AGAMA DESIGNS AND ARE FOR USE ON
THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY

OTHER  WORK WITHOUT THE AGREEMENT AND WRITTEN

PERMISSION OF AGAMA DESIGNS

ISSUED DATE
FOR APPROVAL

FOR PERMIT

FOR BID

FOR CONST.

REVISIONS
1

/2\

/>\

/2\

DATE

L

O

=

L

Q

o o

o W §

> S

-1 O © -

| <t

= L= 28

L Y 204

w xx -4 32

— O = OE=
5 ) ; é ..ol % >
0= E = O D
3= o 0O Gl o 3
) ~— > 3 oo O
JOB NO. 23-132
DATE 01-18-2024
FILE
PLOT SCALE1:1
OWNER APPROVAL
Signature

Date

SHEET TITLE
FOUNDATION AND
BASEMENT FLOOR PLANS

SHEET NUMBER

AT




381_011

79’—6"

4’_0" 10" 27_2” 8'—0" 2'_0" 8‘—0" 2'_0,1 8,—0,’ 37_0"
N
- LANDSCAPE RETAINING
- WALL (VIF) .
T T
- 8/0x8/0 OH. DOOR W/ (3) 8,/0x8,/0 OH. DOOR W/ (3) 8/0x8/0 OH. DOOR W/ (3 >
2X12 W/ 1/2” PLWD BTWN 2X12 W/ 1/2” PLWD BTWN 2X12 W/ 1/2” PLWD BTWN |
B — - —h R— - —h R —— — — —H :
C ] C ] [ P ] A ‘9\\ #
61" 1 ” 6—"
) 32'-11 7
LANDSCAPE -
3 CAR GARAGE CARPENTERS NOTE: RETAINING
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE WALL (VIF)
GYP. BD. TO GYP. BD. W
(TYP) -
A ” ©
\ ) 4” CONC. SLAB WITH OTE h
~ »wl  |6x6 10/10 W.W. MESH OVER : it
S0 S |6 MIL VISQUEEN VAPOR INSULATE ENTIRE GARAGE
x 3 Ll @  |BARRIER OVER 4” GRAVEL FILL 'FL\‘_Sg(')—AEigLFNSA&/' w/
% %ZE ol .= |5/8” TYPE "X” FIRECODE DRYWALL : "
) S5h QQE AT ALL WALLS AND CEILINGS CARPENTER'S NOTE- )
~ N =, @ PROVIDE PUNCH-OUTS | LANDSCAPE —
~EZ Hleo FOR PLUMBING & RETAINING \
SES | HEATING DUCK WORK WALL (VIF)
—|©® x TYP. N
N
v Jla N
CARPENTER’S NOTE: @ =
PROVIDE R—30 BATT GARAGE TOP PLATE
INSUL. IN FLR. ABV. 2 3/4” LOWER THAN
- 3/8” R.S.C. PLYWD THE REST OF THE
ON THE UNDERSIDE HOUSE (TYP)
OF JTS.
o 20 MIN. FIRE
> | | COVERED POR FOYER MUD ROOM SATED DOOR
: SELF CLOSING
N =
— I I ] io
- 7 : L i - v
) » ) » M
Y R N A A ) 4 T —
M -
Plluz v g * 3 ¥4
T em S e S 2/8 S h
© o | | olo _lo 2 2L 2) 2/0 =+ LANDSCAPE -
) 0 N‘L@) 3/0 o y =l WALL (VIF)
7 | Jle o N
N =
. BENCH WITH |}b——— — P TE%‘EE %o < =
s —— = HOOKS S&R ™ S ———_— S
HOSE B T — . ¥ T
BIBE | | DN /T | |
By | 15R o | N
| | - (2)2X10 HDR— ?') | | %
=== = | WITHIN JTS ) < === | ]
= : . ™~
| D | HALLWAY ‘ o @[ | =
1 R |
\ BATHROOM || 106 | UP o . . || BATHROOM | =
‘ | 15R . 10 3-8 |
| | 113 | ‘ I 3)2X10 HDR— N | 119 ‘
WITHIN JTS e :
g Hj‘*’ === 7 |
} f‘{fsxs 6X6 6X6— } |
I WOOD WOOD WOoOoD: | |
[ ; ( ) ]| post POST G osT | — ; |
} | /[ \ 5 HANDRAIL ON STAIRCASE \ J\ | }7
| ONE SIDE |
‘ ” ” 107 ‘
1N CLOSET _ || 34'-38" H. [1o7 ] | cLoser | s
~ |
| . | i
Ul s .
| ozl g l o
<+ —IcN )
| ! [\ =% LIVING ROOM 2 ‘ ol
© o
| | < 108 =~ | |
| DESK \ N|®© | DESK |
| \ | \
| \ j I . "
N | | T
2 | (Ksm X6 |
| WOOD 3)1 3/47 X 147 LVL |
| POST(()/ iiiiiiiiii POST | |
‘ ‘ H ‘ 1
| | LINE OFX Z42” H. RAILING WITH i ‘ |
| _ ‘ FLOOR SPINDLES 4" MAX. 5| . |
/| ConfamerLayout A | ABOYE APART (TYP) | Contamer LayoutB ||
| | | — \
| | | |
| | | \
\ | o | \
| | OPEN TO | | |
L A - ABOVE & | | ﬂ/ |
it BELOW
BEDROOM || é| / i BEDROOM £
< | |
I il iy
| 8'X40’ CONTAINER BY BOB’S CONTAINERS ‘ 7
| ¢ WILL BE SHIPPED READY FOR FINAL A1 |
| | —| HOOK UP AND OCCUPANCY (WALLS ‘ |
| | DOORS WINDOWS ELECTRICAL AND | |
| | PLUMBING) | |
o 1 18'-0” ‘ =
I
CT
SEATING } (3)2X10 W 1/2” } SEATING
| PLYWD BETWEEN |
L T \ @ ) \ I
== C [ W W g o ——
(2) 2x10 A 6 P.T. LOAD £ 2%6 | ~—6x6 P.T. LOAD ' (HZD)R2><1O P.T.
BEARING POST COMPOSITE BEARING POST
2X10_P.T.|[Fy -
. @ 16" 0.d. COVERED PORCH ﬁ%éaposm DECKING COVERED PORCH (2®X11%”Pg-CFJ
| ‘ \ .C.
o \AA, | 114 7/ DECKING
/ o P
(2) 2x10 P.T. HDR (2) 2x10 P.T. HDR—
6X6 P.T. LOAD X i X 6X6 P.T. LOAD— |
BEARING POST [ SEE P SEE [ SEE BEARING POST
42" H. GUARDRAIL ELEV ELEV ELEV 42” H. GUARDRAIL
WITH SPINDLES WITH JORE £-11” £_11 JORT: WITH SPINDLES WITH
4” MAX. BETWEEN 4” MAX. BETWEEN
4’_0" 8,_0" 18’_0” 8’_0”
38'-0”

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:

1/4" = 10"

GENERAL NOTES:

341_011
71_019 10,_0” 101_0" 7’_0”
P SEE P SEE 42" H. GUARDRAIL & SEE
ELEV ELEV y /  WITH SPINDLES ELEV
g'ETTZ'VEAéN MAX. CARPENTERS NOTE:
g0 ALL DIMENSIONS
= ARE GYP. BD. TO
GYP. BD. (TYP)
ke h i | = | I h i
L 1"
12,_013 ‘ 20 _62
\
| ,WOOD TRUSSES,
] | ‘@ 24" oc. 7 —
7! | )
|
] | —
. BEDROOM |
. 1M B |
= 204A | LIVING ROOM —_—
— - G
0o -
p | ‘ )
. | ]
° 2/8 ;
"«I> 4/0 } N
< s BI—FOLD
EY ~—IcN E
i L | i
& ‘ 2/8 ‘D: g
| . 5 | ,WO0D TRUSSES,
x| ‘L = | | Ye 247 0cC.
n ‘ cl\j 9 —72 .I.”) b 2 —ZL& ? —102 ﬁ’—s”b 8’—0" f}, 3,
\ 0 " 1 \ \ 7 7 7
L Ty — |
T S&R | | o -
® %‘ ‘ "'.rl-) ” ‘ ” ‘ ” ‘/ ” \
N = ]l 3/0 ™ 24" | 27" | 24" y 36"
RIS ” 1_ n | 1_ ”
% ?N/ 4170 z‘ko 4 B-roo | BC | BC | BC | LS | |
w ™ 2/8 PKT | >
A AV/ | | |_| | - BAR L | gé
W . | _BATHROOM } 2/6 L 4/0 203 5 36” N
o Dl _atn BI—FOLD BI—FOLD o_ddn T SB -
0" 0 9 —Oz 204B 2/8}/ 41_10" L 31_ » 51_01: Ll 2 V) ° '
st | FOYER® | N\ i N N
36"V 36"V 11 o C N > °
: FURN. FD 36 I ) "
i | 20p W&D Len© | _REF. | LZLZJLLQG"J ©
M j R ?‘ N BC B |_ J
— == 3/0 S | |
4+ 4+ ® _ @ o+ +
B 1] \ A J r B
‘ ‘ 91_411 I ‘ ‘
B DN | © | ™
| | HALLWAY  15%, ; | |
- - : | |
| | 206 : \ N | | -
¢ | | | | | el :
3 | BATHROOM || (WOOD TRUSSES | © " ' g | BATHROOM [ r
© Y@ 247 0c. 7 ||| 5 jol, |38
} [213 ] } | / ; [219 ] }
‘ g:o /\: ‘ i'/ i i i . } ocg ‘
| | | |
| l | s " —1 l [
‘ 7| 42" H. WALL 2X4 —L ‘
E | — } ¥ | WD STUDS @ 16 } Saseatase? | }
0.C. WITH 1/2” GYP |
| M9 8D. ON EAcH sipe | _STAIRCASE i\ ol
| | l
| CLOSET _ || \ | CLOSET | e
B N
| \ ] | — | T
| L | " | |
\ - |
| | LIVING ROOM | T l
| | 208 | (WOOD_TRUSSES), | |
| DESK |l g © 24O |  DESK |
| ‘ |
T | | T 0 = =
= | } 3 e
| | |
| 1 | \ - |
| | 7 | | ‘
| | 42” H. RAILING WITH | |
| _ ‘ SPINDLES 4” MAX. | ‘ | |
|| ConfamerLayout A | APART (TYP) } | Contajner'Layout B | |
l | | | l
| | | | |
| | | | |
\ | \
| ‘ ‘ ‘ |
L | | / . ] ]
BEDROOM | | OPEN TO ‘—,'TN | |||BEDROOM N
| WOOD TRUSSES : | |
210 | [ | ¢UO0DTRUSSESy | bW Wl [z ] i)
L. ‘ L -
| \ | | A |
| | 8'X40" CONTAINER BY BOB'S CONTAINERS | |
| | WILL BE SHIPPED READY FOR FINAL 4 |
L | HOOK UP AND OCCUPANCY (WALLS i | K
| DOORS WINDOWS ELI%CTRICAL AND |
Dam— PLUMBING ——
SEATING | ) ; } SEATING
| 18; On |
i 211 : | I
L S WF———mr e~ | =1 |
(2) 2x10 P.T. HDR - 6X6 P.T. LOAD (3)2K10 W 1/2” 2X6 6X6 P.T. LOAD (2) 2x10 P.T.
BEARING POST PLYWD BETWEEN COMPOSITE BEARING POST HDR
21970 o || COVERED PORCH || 2xg DECKING — || COVERED PORGH /{I"2X19 7. FJ
o
g COMPOSITE "~
I 1 /// Coumos
% 97
(2) 2x10 P.T. HDRA L ~(2) 2x10 P.T. HDR
N ] I ]
6X6 P.T. LOAD 6X6 P.T. LOAD—
BEARING POST $ SEE ¢ SEE T SEE BEARING POST
42” H. GUARDRAIL ELEV ELEV ELEV 42” H. GUARDRAIL
WITH SPINDLES WITH JUE £-11" JURPE JURT WITH SPINDLES WITH
4” MAX. BETWEEN 4" MAX. BETWEEN
8,—0" 18’—0” 8’—0”

1. ALL FLOOR JOISTS SHALL BE #2 DOMESTIC HEM-FIR

OR #2

CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER WITH BRIDGING U.N.O. ON

PLANS.

2. FOOTING SIZES REQ'D: 8" x 16" SUPPORTING FRAME
SUPPORTING BRICK VENEER DESIGN SOIL BEARING
3000 PSF

10" x 20"
CAPACITY =

3. PROVIDE 1/2" OSB CORNER BRACING AND AT 20' INTERVALS

MAX - OSB BRACING TO FOLLOW R602.10.2.1 AND R

4. FOUNDATION WALLS SHALL BE 10" THICK UNDER BR
AND 8" THICK UNDER FRAME CONSTRUCTION.

602.10.2.2
ICK VENEER

5. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES

6. DOUBLE ALL JOIST UNDER WHIRLPOOL

7. ALL FOOTINGS TO BEAR ON UNDISTURBED, NON-ORGANIC SOIL

CAPABLE OF CARRYING 3,000 PSF MINIMUM AND TO
OF 42" BELOW GRADE

8. STRUCTURAL STEEL TO BE A.S.T.M. A-36 REINFORC
BE GRADE 60

BE A MINIMUM

ING STEEL TO

9. ALL GLAZING TO FOLLOW R308 OF THE 2018 IRC AS REQUIRED.
REQUIREMENTS PROVIDE SAFETY GLASS IN ALL DOORS,
SIDELIGHTS, WINDOWS WITH GLAZING WITHIN 18" OF THE FLOOR &
OVER 9 SQUARE FEET OF AREA, GLASS SHOWER ENCLOSURES,

AND WINDOWS AT TUB AREA
10. ANY WHIRLPOOL INSTALLATIONS ARE TO FOLLOW 2

008 NEC

11. DRYER VENT SHALL BE MADE OF GALVANIZED SHEET METAL OR
ALUMINUM - VENT DRYERS AND EXHAUST FANS TO OUTSIDE

12. AFIRE RATED DOOR IS REQUIRED BETWEEN THE G
THE HOUSE - SOLID CORE WITH CLOSERS

13. CONTRACTORS TO OBTAIN AND FOLLOW THE INSTA

ARAGE AND

LLATION

DETAILS AND PROCEDURES FOR ALL MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS
AS CALLED FOR IN THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS THIS IS
TO INCLUDE LVL BEAMS, I-JOISTS, SHINGLES, SIDING, INSULATION,

WINDOWS, DOORS, APPLIANCES, ETC.

14. WINDOW MANUFACTURER TO DESIGN AND PROVIDE NECESSARY
REINFORCING FOR WIND LOADS IN MULLIONS OF COMBINED

WINDOWS VERIFY LOAD REQUIREMENTS

15. HEARTH EXTENSION - MIN. 16" TO FRONT & 8" TO SIDE OF
FIREPLACE OPENING - IF OPENING IS 6 SQ. FT. OR GREATER 20" TO

FRONT AND 12" TO SIDES.

16. EMERGENCY EGRESS WINDOWS PER SEC R310 OF 2018 IRC

17. PROVIDE A (1) HOUR FIRE SEPARATION AT WALLS AND CEILINGS IN
GARAGE COMMON TO RESIDENCE - 5/8" TYPE "X" GYP. BD. AT
WALLS AND CEILING AND PROTECTING ALL STRUCTURAL AND

STEEL MEMBERS

18. ARC-FAULT INTERRUPTER DISCONNECT (AFCI) IS REQUIRED PER

2018 IRC E3902.11 OR 2008 NEC ARTICLE 210.12

19. ALL OUTLETS IN GARAGE, BATHROOMS, KITCHEN, EXTERIOR AND

BASEMENT TO BE GFI PROTECTED - OUTLETS AT FO

R SUMP PUMP,

FURNACE AND EJECTOR PITS TO BE SINGLE DEDICATED OUTLETS -

SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

20. ALL BEDROOMS SHALL HAVE AT LEAST ONE EGRESS WINDOW
WITH A MINIMUM NET CLEAR OPENING OF 5.7 SQ. FT., A MINIMUM

NET CLEAR OPENING HEIGHT DIMENSION OF 24", Ml

NIMUM WIDTH

OF 20" AND A MAXIMUM SILL HEIGHT OF 44" ABOVE THE FINISHED

FLOOR.

PROVIDE WINDOW FALL PROTECTION AS PER R312 OF THE 2018 IRC

22. INSTALL (1) 110V ELECTRIC FIRE AND SMOKE DETEC

TOR ON EACH

FLOOR. INCLUDING BASEMENT, AND EACH BEDROOM WIRED IN

SERIES FOR SIMULTANEOUS ACTION

23. ALL FRAMING DRILLED FOR PLUMBING VENTS OR SIMILAR HOLES
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2 x 6 STUDS IN LIEU OF 2 x 4 STUDS.

24. ALL GUARDRAILS (VERANDA, BALCONY, DECK, AND INTERIOR

STAIRWELLS, ETC.) SHALL HAVE BALUSTERS WHICH

ARE SPACED

SO THAT A 4" DIAMETER SPHERE CANNOT PASS-THRU.
25. WINDOW FALL PROTECTION: ALL WINDOWS TO FOLLOW 4312 OF HE

2018 IRC AS REQUIRED

ROOF RAFTER SCHEDULE

MAX. SPAN
RAFTER SIZE RAFTER SPACING VAULTED CLG.
2x12 16" O.C. 19°-11"
2x10 16" O.C. 17'-2"
2x10 12" O.C. 19'-10"
2x8 16" 0.C 14'-0"

ALL RAFTERS SHALL BE MI.NIMUM SIZE AND SPACING P

MAX. SPAN
NON-VAULTED

21 l_1 "
18l_2u
21 l_ou

14'-11"
ER

SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLANS - ALL

RAFTERS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR ( E = 1,200,000 MIN. )
# 2 CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR ( E = 1,400,000 MIN.) OR

BETTER

CEILING JOIST SCHEDULE
JOIST SIZE JOIST SPACING MAX. SPAN

2x4 AT 16" O.C. 66"
2x6 AT 16" O.C. 120"
2x8 AT 16" O.C. 160"
2x8 AT 12" O.C. 186"
2x10 AT 16" O.C. 197"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 227"
2x12 AT 16" O.C. 228"
2x12 AT 12" O.C. 26'-3"

CEILING JOISTS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR , # 2 CANADIAN

SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER. ALL JOISTS SHALL BE MINIMUM
SIZE AND SPACING PER SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE:

1/4" = 10"

N

MAXIMUM SPAN
| |
JOIST & SPACING NON-SLEEPING SLEEPING
ROOMS ROOMS
L /360 40# LL - 10# DL 30# LL - 10# DL

2x 8 AT 12" O.C. 13'-2" 14'-6"
2x 8 AT 16" O.C. 12'-0" 13'-2"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 16'-10" 18'-6"
2x10 AT 16" O.C. 15'-2" 16'-10"
2x10 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 15'-9" 17'-5"
2x12 AT 12" O.C. 20'-4" 22'-6"
2x12 AT 16" O.C. 17°-7" 19'-8"
2x12 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 19'-1" 21'-4"

PROVIDE DBL. FLOOR JOIST BELOW ALL PARALLEL

PARTITIONS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

ALL FLOOR JOISTS SHALL BE #2 DOMESTIC HEM-FIR,

# 2 CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER.
PROVIDE CROSS BRIDGING AT MAX. 8'-0" O.C.
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4 | .+ (2)3/0 BI-FOLD
Sz | » | CLOSET DOORS
= 1 =T
H% ‘ 4'_9_” ) ‘ ” ‘ =
i n { Vi bﬂbZ--O } ‘—‘II_N
DESK ‘ \§_I | L — DESK PROVIDED
| > BY OWNER
] * =
x | — 48" H. KNEE
Q | \ / WALL — 2X4
- : | . | WD STuDS @
N P | T| 16" 0.C. WITH
| o | 2| 1/2” GYP. BD.
O | ON EACH SIDE
e WITH WD CAP
- ON TOP
[] R A
‘ ~
‘ 2'—6" ‘
BEDROOM | |
] | ‘
\
| l
1R |
| | 33
N | 2 &Z
N ‘ N N =
) .
- s RO
e
SEATING | S— |
- * B
| | oz
| 0=
| JD=
| e |} PN
‘ R
N
N I S e
WINDOW NOTE: gﬁ%mc 8'X40' CONTAINER BY
ALL WINDOW SIZES SOOR BOB’S CONTAINERS WILL
ARE ACCORDING L0 20" BE SHIPPED READY FOR
TO PELLA PROLINE ) FINAL HOOK UP AND
o OCCUPANCY (WALLS DOORS
8'-0 WINDOWS ELECTRICAL AND
PLUMBING)

CONTAINER LAYOUT B

SCALE:

1/4" = 10"

ELECTRICAL
o[ CONNECTION

,—SUB
PANEL

~110V DUAL ACTION
SMOKE DET. WIRED
IN SERIES W/
BATTERY BACKUP

Bedroom

Covered Porch

LAYOUT A ELEC.

SCALE:

1/ n = 1'_0"

ELECTRICA
CONNECTIO

m
+ +

GENERAL NOTES:

110V DUAL ACTION -
SMOKE DET. WIRED
IN SERIES W/
BATTERY BACKUP

|
|
Desk/ Area

Bedroom

|

Covered Porch

. ALL FLOOR JOISTS SHALL BE #2 DOMESTIC HEM-FIR OR #2

CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER WITH BRIDGING U.N.O. ON
PLANS.

FOOTING SIZES REQ'D: 8" x 16" SUPPORTING FRAME 10" x 20"
SUPPORTING BRICK VENEER DESIGN SOIL BEARING CAPACITY =
3000 PSF

PROVIDE 1/2" OSB CORNER BRACING AND AT 20' INTERVALS

MAX - OSB BRACING TO FOLLOW R602.10.2.1 AND R602.10.2.2
FOUNDATION WALLS SHALL BE 10" THICK UNDER BRICK VENEER
AND 8" THICK UNDER FRAME CONSTRUCTION.

ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES

6. DOUBLE ALL JOIST UNDER WHIRLPOOL
7. ALL FOOTINGS TO BEAR ON UNDISTURBED, NON-ORGANIC SOIL

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

22.

23.

24.

25.

CAPABLE OF CARRYING 3,000 PSF MINIMUM AND TO BE A MINIMUM
OF 42" BELOW GRADE

STRUCTURAL STEEL TO BE A.S.T.M. A-36 REINFORCING STEEL TO
BE GRADE 60

ALL GLAZING TO FOLLOW R308 OF THE 2018 IRC AS REQUIRED.
REQUIREMENTS PROVIDE SAFETY GLASS IN ALL DOORS,
SIDELIGHTS, WINDOWS WITH GLAZING WITHIN 18" OF THE FLOOR &
OVER 9 SQUARE FEET OF AREA, GLASS SHOWER ENCLOSURES,
AND WINDOWS AT TUB AREA

ANY WHIRLPOOL INSTALLATIONS ARE TO FOLLOW 2008 NEC

DRYER VENT SHALL BE MADE OF GALVANIZED SHEET METAL OR
ALUMINUM - VENT DRYERS AND EXHAUST FANS TO OUTSIDE

A FIRE RATED DOOR IS REQUIRED BETWEEN THE GARAGE AND
THE HOUSE - SOLID CORE WITH CLOSERS

CONTRACTORS TO OBTAIN AND FOLLOW THE INSTALLATION
DETAILS AND PROCEDURES FOR ALL MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS
AS CALLED FOR IN THE MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS THIS IS
TO INCLUDE LVL BEAMS, I-JOISTS, SHINGLES, SIDING, INSULATION,
WINDOWS, DOORS, APPLIANCES, ETC.

WINDOW MANUFACTURER TO DESIGN AND PROVIDE NECESSARY
REINFORCING FOR WIND LOADS IN MULLIONS OF COMBINED
WINDOWS VERIFY LOAD REQUIREMENTS

HEARTH EXTENSION - MIN. 16" TO FRONT & 8" TO SIDE OF
FIREPLACE OPENING - IF OPENING IS 6 SQ. FT. OR GREATER 20" TO
FRONT AND 12" TO SIDES.

EMERGENCY EGRESS WINDOWS PER SEC R310 OF 2018 IRC

PROVIDE A (1) HOUR FIRE SEPARATION AT WALLS AND CEILINGS IN
GARAGE COMMON TO RESIDENCE - 5/8" TYPE "X" GYP. BD. AT
WALLS AND CEILING AND PROTECTING ALL STRUCTURAL AND
STEEL MEMBERS

ARC-FAULT INTERRUPTER DISCONNECT (AFCI) IS REQUIRED PER
2018 IRC E3902.11 OR 2008 NEC ARTICLE 210.12

ALL OUTLETS IN GARAGE, BATHROOMS, KITCHEN, EXTERIOR AND
BASEMENT TO BE GFI PROTECTED - OUTLETS AT FOR SUMP PUMP,
FURNACE AND EJECTOR PITS TO BE SINGLE DEDICATED OUTLETS -
SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

ALL BEDROOMS SHALL HAVE AT LEAST ONE EGRESS WINDOW
WITH A MINIMUM NET CLEAR OPENING OF 5.7 SQ. FT., A MINIMUM
NET CLEAR OPENING HEIGHT DIMENSION OF 24", MINIMUM WIDTH
OF 20" AND A MAXIMUM SILL HEIGHT OF 44" ABOVE THE FINISHED
FLOOR.

PROVIDE WINDOW FALL PROTECTION AS PER R312 OF THE 2018 IRC

INSTALL (1) 110V ELECTRIC FIRE AND SMOKE DETECTOR ON EACH
FLOOR. INCLUDING BASEMENT, AND EACH BEDROOM WIRED IN
SERIES FOR SIMULTANEOUS ACTION

ALL FRAMING DRILLED FOR PLUMBING VENTS OR SIMILAR HOLES
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 2 x 6 STUDS IN LIEU OF 2 x 4 STUDS.

ALL GUARDRAILS (VERANDA, BALCONY, DECK, AND INTERIOR
STAIRWELLS, ETC.) SHALL HAVE BALUSTERS WHICH ARE SPACED
SO THAT A 4" DIAMETER SPHERE CANNOT PASS-THRU.

WINDOW FALL PROTECTION: ALL WINDOWS TO FOLLOW 4312 OF HE
2018 IRC AS REQUIRED

LAYOUT B ELEC.

SCALE:

1/4" = 10"

MAX. SPAN MAX. SPAN
RAFTER SIZE RAFTER SPACING VAULTED CLG. NON-VAULTED
2x12 16" O.C. 19°-11" 211"
2x10 16" O.C. 17'-2" 18'-2"
2x10 12" O.C. 19'-10" 21'-0"
2x8 16" 0.C 14'-0" 14'-11"

ROOF RAFTER SCHEDULE

ALL RAFTERS SHALL BE MI.NIMUM SIZE AND SPACING PER
SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLANS - ALL
RAFTERS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR ( E = 1,200,000 MIN. )

# 2 CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR ( E = 1,400,000 MIN.) OR BETTER

CEILING JOIST SCHEDULE
JOIST SIZE JOIST SPACING MAX. SPAN

2x4 AT 16" O.C. 66"
2x6 AT 16" O.C. 120"
2x8 AT 16" O.C. 160"
2x8 AT 12" O.C. 186"
2x10 AT 16" O.C. 197"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 227"
2x12 AT 16" O.C. 228"
2x12 AT 12" O.C. 26'-3"

CEILING JOISTS SHALL BE # 2 HEM - FIR , # 2 CANADIAN
SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER. ALL JOISTS SHALL BE MINIMUM

SIZE AND SPACING PER SCHEDULE ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

MAXIMUM SPAN
| |
JOIST & SPACING NON-SLEEPING SLEEPING
ROOMS ROOMS
L /360 40# LL - 10# DL 30# LL - 10# DL

2x 8 AT 12" O.C. 13'-2" 14'-6"
2x 8 AT 16" O.C. 12'-0" 13'-2"
2x10 AT 12" O.C. 16'-10" 18'-6"
2x10 AT 16" O.C. 15'-2" 16'-10"
2x10 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 15'-9" 17'-5"
2x12 AT 12" O.C. 20'-4" 22'-6"
2x12 AT 16" O.C. 17°-7" 19'-8"
2x12 AT 16" O.C.
DBL. EVERY OTHER JOIST 19'-1" 21'-4"

PROVIDE DBL. FLOOR JOIST BELOW ALL PARALLEL
PARTITIONS, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

ALL FLOOR JOISTS SHALL BE #2 DOMESTIC HEM-FIR,
# 2 CANADIAN SPRUCE PINE FIR OR BETTER.
PROVIDE CROSS BRIDGING AT MAX. 8'-0" O.C.

AGAMA DESIGNS

architecture

664 W Veterans Pkwy, Suite A
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Phone: 630-381-9019

E-mail: alberto@agamadesigns.com

THESE DRAWINGS, INCLUDING ALL DESIGNS, DETAILS,
SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION, ARE THE SOLE PROPERTY
AND COPYRIGHT OF AGAMA DESIGNS AND ARE FOR USE ON
THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT AND SHALL NOT BE USED ON ANY

OTHER  WORK WITHOUT THE AGREEMENT AND WRITTEN

PERMISSION OF AGAMA DESIGNS

ISSUED DATE
FOR APPROVAL

FOR PERMIT

FOR BID

FOR CONST.

REVISIONS DATE
1

/2\

/2\

/2\

LLl

@)

=

LLI

-

g

o W 3

> =8

o nao o

| <t

=05 o2f

- n Y Z0 g

W = 4328

— O > QE=
5 O = é w3 S
m oV E > 0O o
3= o O gl o 3
) «— > 3 o O
JOB NO. 23-132
DATE 01-18-2024
FILE
PLOT SCALE1:1
OWNER APPROVAL
Signature

Date

SHEET TITLE
CONTAINER DETAILS

SHEET NUMBER

A3




ABOVE WINDOWS —PLACE
HEADER RIGHT BELOW TOP

PLATES (TYPICAL)

USE 2-2X12 HEADER W/ 1/2"
R—3 FOAM SPACER IN BETWEEN

WINDOW NOTE:
ALL WINDOW SIZES ARE

ACCORDING TO PELLA PROLINE

@ = EGRESS WINDOW

VENT

CONT. RIDGE7

CONT. RIDGE
VENT ;

6X6 WOOD POST

ABA66 — 12 GAUGE PLATES
/16 GAUGE BASE COVER

2"MINIMUM CONCRETE SLAB

SIDECOVER

@= SAFETY GLASS ,,
5/8” DIA. ANCHOR BOLT — SET ANCHOR
WINDOW NOTE: PER MFR. RECOMMENDATIONS — MIN 14
PROVIDE 0.30 | L
U—FACTOR IN A GUTTER OV L/ ALUM. GU " OVER
ALL WINDOWS / O AS A P Q FAS A \/[D
AT AL T |
® R E BRD. X6 R BRD.
L T LTI T LTI T LTI T AT AT L T LT T LTI T T T T T T T T AT AT LT LT T LTI T
TRUSS EE/ABWG o d = = I = T/PLATE R
A% e N - - N
6X6 LOAD
BEARING R.S.C. CORNER
PosT B0ARD WOOD POST DETAIL
— /
\ g / \ 4 = (DN /
// \\ 40| Hiolh Euse L @ L 8F \WNIL 42" H. GUARDRAIL SCALE: NTS
%o 42" H. GUARDRAIL ~_| CONTAINER| - o Y N v BOARD AND WITH SPINDLES WITH '
o WITH SPINDLES WITH N % PRQVIDED BY 1 E 23341||.2 BATTEN SIDING 4” MAX. BETWEEN
4” MAX. BETWEEN < N / OTHERS z /| 7
295% 2959 y &}
SECOND FLR (610.46") 2ND FLR
— N, - - = . — N
o~ [ wooD DECK WOOD _DECK T/PLATE
6X6 LOAD /(
Do NG T P _ METAL SUPPORT
> N = BRACKET — SEE
\ \ % N 240" HIGH CUBE 5 / I DETAIL
% 42" H. GUARDRAIL ~_| /@ @ SR TR g | 2 BOARD AND ki
4” MAX. BETWEEN s N y 7 7 z /7
2955 2959 / -
> LANDSCARE | RETAINING +—
WALL TO |BE VERIKIED
, IN| FIELD |—| PRQVIDE , AREAS
FIRST FLR (603.96") i | GAURDRAIL IWHEN FIRST FLR (603.96")
-~ - = — — — PROVIDE— NECESSARY - = — = — =
N _ _ WOOD_DECK It O A -2 N g A GRADEJ _TP/FDN (603.00") BASEMENT AREA 1,521 SF.
N 1ST FLOOR 1,205 S.F.
S§R|INO£D LANESC_APE_RETMN_ING — ¥ S GARAGE FLR 2ND FLOOR AREA 1,990 S.F.
oot . Y WALL TO|BE VERIFIED I ) (602.5) GARAGE AREA 801 S.F.
/ \ v = /provipg | N| FIELD |~ PROVIDE
” % \ B GAURDRAIL |WHEN ; 14'-4"
42" H. GUARDRAIL ~ ‘4’ ~ v NAILERS g y = ® L TOTAL AREA — GARAGE
A / \ 440’ HIGH CUBE | i g 3
% WITH SPINDLES WITH CONTAINER | 2 LANDSQARE | RETANING 17 V| NECESARY T = : . — e NOT INCLUDED 4716 SF.
w 4”7 MAX. BETWEEN \ / PRQVIDED BY o NI FIELD [T PRAVIDE - =N | B
= Hots - OTHERS 3 5 GAURDRAIL WHEN NN o |
p O NECESSARY - Yo I — U TR 1
2 —_ s
f? AL r e — &~ ] |_I
) — S R -
| BASMENT FLR (594.46) 3 s - f N USE 2-2X12 HEADER W/ 1/2”
S~ T i WOOD DECK B RS | R—3 FOAM SPACER IN BETWEEN
| e [{e] —
4X4 PRESSURE TREATED 40'—0" CONTANER LENGTH TP/FDN— o e _J QE,SI\D/ERWI%TC[;)I—?M%ELCF))V%/AQF%P
WD POST ON 12" DIA. Y — =T |
CONC. PIER 42" MIN TGXG PRESSURE TREATED e ——_ L PLATES (TYPICAL)
BELOW GRADE (TYP.) J WD POST ON 1/0X1/0 N I “_______ .
GRADE COCNRETE PIER T.rI) = [ s WINDOW NOTE:
GRADE AT SOUTH - 77 : s | H ALL WINDOW SIZES ARE
ELEV. (589.96) . ! NS —— — ACCORDING TO PELLA PROLINE
/ : : : : | ~ r————— ;—;—;—;—F“‘L’f—— ——————————— .
— —_— = - A - - - _ —
FROST LINE | | e —— < @ FGRESS WINDOW
4211 BELOW | | | | ,_l _______ ;_ ;_;“_w_ﬁﬂ_“f__ ________ |_|
GRADE WERE | | e ——— e ‘- _ = SAFETY GLASS
—
APPLICABLE S S Ll —
e 6X6 PRESSURE TREATED WINDOW NOTE:
—_ WD POST ON 14" DIA. PROVIDE 0.30
CONC. PIER 42” MIN. XL_LFAV%%%V\'E
BELOW GRADE (TYP.) SCALE:  1/4" = 1-0"
TRUSS BEARING f
- L~ N
N I I R N I I R N I I R RS.C. CORNER
R.S.C. CORNER 6/0 A BOARD
NOTE: USE A SONOTUBE METAL CONNECTO BOARD \\ SLIDING @ ﬁ 8" v
: NOTE: USE A SONOTUBE TO :
SIMPSON STRONG TO FORM_ PEDESTAL SEE TABLE A FORM A 12" DIA. PEDESTAL 8 —10d COMMON NAILS N POOR gg%RE?\l ASI\IIEE))IN o
ngggs;DgA\\NSEFOR 6X6 COLUMN SIMPSON STRONG 4x4 POST X 1 1/2" LONG PER X \ h @ @ vd
- o TIE POST BASE ANGLE
6X6 NOMINAL POST / 43 — REBAR CBQ44-SDSW FOR 7 9%10 STRINGER 2X4 FLAT W2ITH 3759 3759
FINISH GROUND LEVEL f TES 18" CTS X4 NOMINAL POST / iﬁgi QEZEZT/EABEL@ LA —. }éé E%E(;VEESLED
i 1/2" CHAMFER FINISH GROUND LEVEL _ :
i i / V . H f1/2 CHAMFER 4%X4 WOOD POST o6
REUEEAAKKL /\\//\\//\%//\\// T R RN ORI 1 BT iiiisy SST ff A23Z N kj jﬁ - WOOD DECK
RN T IR E AN NN NN NN NN D N N N N N N I R NN NN NN METAL ANGLE 2X6 i L > C
YRR 1 L YOOI @}@%\//\ DULL L L LR BT N N N N NN N NNNN _ ] ETAL SUPPORT| BRACKET
S i e CERRRRAGA. + oo .
SN o o | IR //%/ SN PLACE SV R 2X6 TREX .
K N /\\\/\\\/\\\/\\\/ 11-2 \///\/ /////\// ") \//\\//\\//\\//\\gy /\\// = \\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\//\\/ COMPOSITE o
RO = SESESKA DIAMETER NN + KKK DECKING ;
KKK 70222 CONCRETE. PEDESTAL LREILKL SN . — ) ﬁ ﬁ 42" H. GUARDRAIL
2 Ao« N ™~ NS © -
o | - X N
2L ) x =7 I I - = WITH SPINDLES WITH
4 CAST-IN PLACE — N 4~ MAX. BETWEEN
: . 12" DIAMETER . n
~ == — CONCRETE PEDESTAL
NOTES: SOl PR e YSP #1 BEAM FIRST FLR (603.96")
1. CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE CAST—IN PLACE s E;\ N o
UTILITIES PRIOR TO 14" DIAMETER (2) 5/8" DIAMETER A307 TP/FDN (603.00°)
EXCAVATING FOR FOUNDATION CONCRETE PEDESTAL 2—2%10 BLOCKING FOR INSTALLATION N4 HEX BOLTS, 11" LONG / / / WOOD DECK
2. CONTRACTOR TO NOTIFY #5 REBARS METAL CONNECTOR 0; 4X4 POST SEE PLAN W/ NUT & WASHERS GARAGE FLR 8/0x8/0 INSUL. ) 8/0x8/0 INSUL. 8/0x8/0 INSUL. ]
(1-312-744 700) 48 , VERTICAL & AT POST BASE (602.5) | O.H. DOOR oL 0.H. DOOR 0.H. DOOR )
HOURS MIN. PRIOR TO & N : | S o |
EXCAVATION CLEA N N ONCRETE |
3. REINFORCEMENT TO BE ASTM o N PEDESTAL | R e N [ | GRADE
A—6-15, GR-60 EXPOXY - = —— — — —— | —Se ] ,7
4 ggﬁTcEDTo HAVE FC=3,000 : #EBERES | : FROST LINE |\7VAA,\|I_[ES%PEER\%¢€||I\I—H|ES : :
PSI W/ 5-8% AR DIA. PIER I | g%ADEf_:EWEV\éE IN FIELD — PROVIDE |
ENTRAINMENT | | APPLICABLE GAURDRAIL WHEN o
I — NECESSARY
L 1
6X6 PRESSURE TREATED e —
WD POST ON 14" DIA.
CONC. PIER 42" MIN.
BELOW GRADE (TYP.)
PIER DETAIL PIER DETAIL POST DETAIL SCALE: 1 =10
SCALE:  1/2"=1-0" SCALE:  1/2"=1-0" SCALE:  11/2"=1-0"
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41_011

ABOVE WINDOWS —PLACE

PLATES (TYPICAL)

USE 2-2X12 HEADER W/ 1/2”
R—-3 FOAM SPACER IN BETWEEN

HEADER RIGHT BELOW TOP

CONT. RIDGI—i7

VENT

CONT. RIDGI—i7

WINDOW NOTE:
ALL WINDOW SIZES ARE

ACCORDING TO PELLA PROLINE

@ = EGRESS WINDOW

©= SAFETY GLASS
WINDOW NOTE:
PROVIDE 0.30 TR o 5 L TTT I TTTT 1T 11
U—FACTOR IN FR |OVER ALUM. > OVER
R il‘llll ﬂliiIIlIIIIIlIIIIIlIIIIIlIIIIIlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIF"‘l iguaid 3
/ X6 FRIEZE BRD / X6 BRD J‘
T/PLATE H\HHHHHHHHHHHHHH,\ | AT T | 'HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH,HA/H | L T T T T LTI T T IE [ RUSS BEARING
R.S.C. CORNER 6X6 LOAD
BOARD \\ / TBEARING
_ POST
|_
) KS} e // \\ | /
. 42" H. GUARDRAIL 1,8’ AYNIL o Y N .
| WITH SPINDLES WITH BOARD AND =0 |1 —42” H. GUARDRAIL w| 7
> | 4" MAX. BETWEEN BATTEN SIDING JI=E Q g WITH SPINDLES WITH Ll o
/| z N / » 4" MAX. BETWEEN
O 2959 2959
R 2ND FLR SECOND FLR (610.46")
N T/PLATE WOOD DECK WOOD DECK - -
A — 4>& — 6X6 LOAD
METAL SUPPORT TECE)@F;”\‘G
BRACKET — SEE 2P VYNIL — villl=m e / \
DETAIL ] BOARD AND L o N / \ ) /
. BATTEN SIDING ™ 1 / \ ” | %
o 42" H. GUARDRAIL ﬁ @ /] ﬁ —l — l |z L — 42" H. GUARDRAIL |
. - | = J|= WITH SPINDLES WITH T =
w0 WITH SPINDLES WITH — — > | E N / e 4” MAX. BETWEEN *
4" MAX. BETWEEN 5 \59 2/ :
N | O 29 959
\
FIRST FLR (603.96') N Y o FIRST FLR (603.96")
;% - - - = .
TP/FDN (603.00") WOOD DECK o -
N ——— WOOD DECK 6X6 LOAD
GARAGE FLR|-1—— T TBEAR”\,G
(6025 I - = / ) PosT
[ [ ] ] / N »
T TN T — GRADE EN 0 |2 @ @ WITH SPINDLES WITH % |
L =% /N 2 _ 1= N\ g 4" MAX. BETWEEN o
FROST LINE L | s Z \59 2/
42” BELOW o N 'S 29 959
GRADE WERE | | ©
APPLICABLE . | | \ ¢
— e — o — (- S— | I BASMENT FLR (594.46")
LANDSCAPE RETAINING | T~ L N | | . 50D DECK - — - = ~
WALL TO BE VERIFIED T | | S 6X6 PRESSURE TREATED — |
IN FIELD — PROVIDE 720 Bl R | b WD POST ON 1/0X1/0 ] :
ﬁfégggg/ﬁ% WHEN 6X6 PRESSURE TREATED | —~ — | o . COCNRETE PIER : " 7
WD POST ON 14” DIA. | T = ~L L o T s i ’ "
CONC. PIER 42" MIN. S | ~L——— | ] o © Sf@\?E(ggSQOGL{)TH
BELOW GRADE (TYP.) L I N —_— —— i G ekt AN O
6X6 PRESSURE TREATED T m— e | ~— —
WD POST ON 14” DIA. - R — T __ | GRADE\LI :\
CONC. PIER 42” MN. = =TT T T T ST T T T T T T T T T T T T T e e . | | o
WE S I E LEVA I ION BELOW GRADE (TYP.) == ———————— =N —— 5 O o
- - e e e |
6X6 PRESSURE TR;'.FE? o L ~
. " _ —O" —
SCALE: 1/4" =1'-0 WD POST ON 14” DIA.
CONC. PIER 42" MIN.
BELOW GRADE (TYP.)
FURNACE WATER HEATER DRYER MACHINE
80,000 BTU 80,000 BTU 35,000 BTU FUEL GAS SCHEDULE PAN El_ SCH EDU I_E
80 CFH 80 CFH 35 CFH FROM TABLE G2413.4(1)
19" FROM METER ~ 22° FROM METER 34’ FROM METER *225A MAIN LUGS ONLY *120/240V, 1PH, 3W
~@ ~@ ~@® STOVE PIPING TYPE SCHEDULE 40 METALLIC PIPE *SURFACE MOUNT PANELBOARD "A” *10,000 AIC
40,000 BTU *GROUND BAR
— S .= we . | = - |=] 40 CFH GAS NATURAL
6X6 COLUMN o | ™ o QT4 ol YR 41 rrow METER
S 2X4 FLAT W2ITH = = K R INLET PRESSURE | LESS THAN 2 PS
SST # A237 METAL ANGLE , , : ; v PRESSURE DROP 0.5 IN. W.C. NO. LOAD NAME A/P NO. LOAD NAME A/P
SEE TABLE A N TOP EDGES OAS METER, /19 ’ ° ° 1
./ AN > |= SPECIFIC GRAVITY | 0.60 1 PANEL GF 20/1 2 WALK AND HALL LIGHTS AND RECEPT. 20/1
X6 1.1/47 1.1/4% = 1 1 3 FOYER, STUDY, LIVING RM LIGHTS 15/1 4 MASTER BEDROOM LIGHTS & RECEPT. 15/1
2X2 WOOD BALUSTER / * 4 5 DINING & KITCHEN LIGHTS 15/1 6  FAMILY ROOM LIGHTS RECEPTACLES  15/1
N
BEYOND N e 3/4°9 7 SMALL APPLIANCES CIRCUIT 20/1 8  SMOKE DETECTORS 15/1
| S N S |5 9 SMALL APPLIANCES CIRCUIT 20?1 10 DINING ROOM RECEPTACLES 15;1
- = A NS |~ 11 OVEN RECEPTACLE 20/1 12 KITCHEN GFI RECEPTACLES 20/1
— M M
SST # A23Z METAL ANGLE | 4 ATTACH 2X2 WOOD ELECTRIC LOAD CALCULATIONS
SEE TABLE A BALUSTER TO 2X6 @ = = 13 MICROWAVE 20/1 14 DRYER 20/1
A USING (2)—#8 X 2 1/2" DRYER MACHINE FURNACE WATER HEATER 15 UPPER HALL LIGHTS & RECEPTACLES 15/1 16 WASHER / DISPOSAL 20/1
2%6 PT WOOD ‘© 35,000 BTU 80,000 BTU 80,000 BTU GENERAL LIGHTING AND RECEPTACLE LOADS 17 RECEPTACLES 15/1 18  REFRIG 20/1
| LONG DECK SCREWS AT 35 CFH 80 CFH 80 CFH
DECKING A , 2,085 S.F. DWELLING UNIT
M EACH END 42" FROM METER 43 FROM METER 44" FROM METER 2 SMALL APPLIANCE CIRCUITS 19 RECEPTACLES 15/1 20  EJECTOR PIT (1 POLE) 15/1
%6 1 LAUNDRY CIRCUIT 21 CONDENSING UNIT—2 2o§1 22  CONDENSING UNIT—1 2o§1
23 SPARE 20/1 24 SPARE 20/1
2X10 JOISTS @ GAS RISER DIAG RAMS 120V, SINGLE_PHASE LOADS 25 SUMP PUMP (1 POLE) 15/1 26  BASEMENT LIGHTS 15/1
16" 0.C. a 2600 VA WATER PUMP
- N A = SCALE: NS 1000 VA DISPOSAL 27 POWDER ROOM GFl 20/1 28  LAUNDRY RECEPTACLE 20/1
— e e 1600 VA DISHWASHER
_ PENCYVS 31 BEDROOM 1, BATHROOM 1 LIGHTS 15/1 32 BEDROOMS 2 AND 3 LIGHTS 15/1
! ] 240 V, SINGLE PHASE LOADS 33 SPARE 15/1 34  BATH 2 GFl RECEPTACLES 20/1
4 ) N 5000 VA DRYER 35 GARAGE LIGHTS 20/1 36  BATH 3 GFl RECEPTACLE 20/1
’ 2-2X12 PRESSURED TREATED 5000 YA M INT 37 GARAGE OUTLETS 20/1 38 GARAGE OPENER OUTLETS 20/1
YSP #1 BEAM 6000 VA WATER HEATER 39 SPARE 20/1 40  SPARE 20/1
SST  LUS210Z OR SS ;% ggOvXAcg(\)/E?op 41 SPARE 20/1 42  SPARE 20/1
JOIST HANGER AT EACH
JOST (YPIGAL) 800 VA BLOWER MOTOR ++ VERIFY CIRCUIT SIZE WITH EQUIPMENT MFR. FEEDER SIZE 2/0
1000 VA WHIRLPOOL PUMP PHASES A & B | = <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>